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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

25 Hall St.

Concord, NH 03301
TEL (603)271-3495
FAX (603) 271-1953

Christine Brennan

Deputy Commissioner

October 3, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) to enter into a
sole source contract with Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services (NDHHS) Concord, NH,
(Vendor Code 159021), in an amount not to exceed 5257,848.56 to provide interpreter referral
coordination for a VR staff member and VR customers interpreter assignments, effective upon
Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2027. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the accounts titled VR Field Programs-Federal in FY
2024, FY2025, and are anticipated to be available in FY2026 and FY2027 upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget with the ability to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal years through the Budget Office, without further Governor
and Council approval, if needed and justified.

KJ

FY 2024 FY2025

06-56-56-565010-25380000-102-50073

Contracts for Program Services
549,950.00 566,600.00

FY2026

569,264.00

FY2027

572,034.56

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because NDHHS has established strong reliable relationships within
the deaf community over many years. Given its specialized services and established track
record, NDHHS is the reasonable choice in New Hampshire equipped to meet this underserved
population's needs effectively. Therefore, the sole source procurement of services from
NDHHS is recommended to ensure the continued high standard of support and empowerment of
deaf, hard of hearing, and deafblind individuals in the stale. NDHHS is a non-profit
organization that has exclusive provision of a comprehensive range of services for deaf, hard of
hearing, and deafblind individuals across multiple settings.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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NDHHS has a governing board that is controlled by persons with disabilities and provides the
four core independent living services of advocacy, information and referral, skills training, and
peer support counseling. The purpose of NDHHS is to promote life with independence for
people who are deaf or hard of hearing who reside in the state, which makes them uniquely
suited to provide service coordination and interpreter referral services, as well as continue the
development of specialized services for individuals who are deaf.

Staff members of the bureau need to request interpreters for department business and VR
customers need interpreters to accomplish employment related appointments and training.
Interpreting coordination can occur for Deaf Commission meetings as well to allow for
communication access. This is a crucial service for effective and timely communication for this
population.

Respectfully Submitted,

OA
Frank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must

be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIKICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department of Education
(NHED)

1.2 State Agency Address
25 Hall Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, INC.
1.4 Contractor Address

56 Suncook Road

Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)463-0748

1.6 Account Unit and Class

See Exhibit C

1.7 Completion Date
June 30, 2027

1.8 Price Limitation

$257,848.56 -

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Lisa Hinson-Halz

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number
603-419-0086

1.11 CMlractor ̂ ghaturc . 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Michelle McConaghy - E.xccutivc Director

1.13 Stale A^n^Sicnirc^^

Date: 10/17/2023

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Frank Hdclblui - Commissioner

1.15 Approval by theN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By; Director, On;

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form; Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By: Elizabeth Brown (Attorney / . _ On: 10/17/2023

1.17 Approval by the Governor and ExdJ^utivc Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number; G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EKFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereundcr, shall
become erfcclivc on the date the Governor and Executive Council

approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Dale, all Services perfonncd by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereundcr, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereundcr, arc contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the Stale be liable for any payments hereurider in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT-B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such flinds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMTTATION/ PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C which
is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hcreunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price .shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the Slate and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Stales, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the tcnn of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
bccausc'of age, sex. sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious crccd, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affiiTOative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by stale or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors comply
with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpo.se or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the Slate or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofasccrtaining compliance with this Agreement and all
rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall he properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1,9, or any
successor, shall be the Stale's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following .acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcundcr ("Event of
Default*');
8.1.1 failure.to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcrcundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would othci-wisc accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the Slate determines that
the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate die Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION-

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Stale may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the Slate is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting OITiccr,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether ftnishcd or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to tlic Slate upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.ll. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the Stale.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its ofTiccrs, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the Slate or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. assignment/delecation/subcontracts.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the Stale written notice at least ftfteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No. such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the Slate.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its alTiliatcs, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the Slate, its olTicers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its ofTicers,
or employees caused by the act.s or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The Slate shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
51,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than "
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall • furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a ccrtincate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide ccrtificatc{s) of insurance for all rcnewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1 .9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compen.sation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
rencwal(.s) thereof, which shall be attached and arc incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable Stale of New
-Hampshire Workers' Compensation Jaws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NO TICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other parly shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no .sucli approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the Slate of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the terms of this P-37 fonn (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of (he parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or rcmcdy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such fiirthcr actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court, of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of this
Agreement will remain in full force and eftect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Additional exhibits D-G.

Federal Certincation 2 CFR 200.415

Required certifications include: (a) To assure that expenditures are proper and in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Federal award and approved project
budgets, the annual and final fiscal reports or vouchers requesting payment under the
agreements must include a certification, signed by an official who is authorized to legally
bind the non-Federal entity, which reads as follows:

By signing this report, T certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is
true, complete, and accurate, and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for
the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the Federal award. I am
aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material
fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties' for fraud, false
statements, false claims or otherwise. (U.S. Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Title 31,
Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Contract between Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearinj^ Services. Inc. and
The New Hampshire Department ofEducation
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (NDHHS) will provide the following services to
the New Hampshire Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VRNH),
effective upon Govemor and Council approval through June 30, 2027:

The referral department at NDHHS works to match individuals who are deaf and hard of hearing
with appropriate, qualified interpreters or Communication Access Realtime Translation (CART)
reporters. They utilize a referral database with individualized communication preference profiles.

The Department must set up interpreters for various meetings (i.e. advisory council meetings. Slate
Rehabilitation Council meetings, VR staff supervision meetings, VR participant meetings and
college/training classes, etc.)

This contract will cover three main functions for the department:
1} Referral coordination for Vocational Rehabilitation participants who are deaf or hard of hearing.
2) Referral coordination for Vocational Rehabilitation staff that are deaf or hard of hearing and
need communication access to perform job responsibilities.
3) NDHHS will process and coordinate communication access invoices, from interpreters and
CART reporters, for any needs categorized by VR as "Administrative."

Referral Coordination Process:

1. NDHHS receives ASL-English Interpreter/CART request from VR
o Referral Process/Coordination

o Confirmations are sent to all applicable parties
2. NDHHS receives the ASL-English Interpreter/CART Reporter's invoice for services

rendered

o NDHHS pays the ASL-English Interpreter/CART Reporter's invoice
o NDHHS tracks all VR Interpreter Invoices for Reporting purposes

3. NDHHS generates monthly VR invoices package
o  Includes:

■  Referral Coordination

■  Administrative Processing Costs
■  ASL-English Intcrprctcr/CART Reporter Reimbursement Costs

•  Report of all ASL-English Interpreter/CART Reporter Invoices
o Package will be submitted to VR for Month A by the 15'^ of Month B

4. VR Receives Invoice Package from NDHHS for review
5. VR remits payment for Month A by the last day of Month B

Contract between Northeast Deaf and Hard ofHearing Services. Inc. and
The New Hampshire Department of Education

Page 2 of 4
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EXHIBIT B CONTINUED

Reporting:

Prepare separate monthly reports and send to VRNH. Each report should include the number of
interpreters or CART reporter referrals coordinated. The report should include requests and the
number of requests that are fulfilled and the number of requests that are not fulfilled. These
reporting measures will also be included with monthly invoices.

Contract between Northeast Deafand Hard ofHearing Services. Inc. and
The New Hampshire Department of Education

Page 3 of 4

Contractor Initials.



EXHIBIT C

METHOD OF PAYMENT

Item Estimated

FV2024

FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 Total

Salaries &

Benefits

$33,750.00 $45,000.00 $46,800.00 $48,672.00 $174,222.00

Operations

Overhead

$16,200.00. $21,600.00 $22,464.00 $23,362.56 $83,626.56

Total $49,950.00 $66,600.00 $69,264.00 $72,034.56 $257,848.56

Limitation on Price; Upon mutual agreement between the state contracting officer and the
contractor, line items in this budget may be adjusted one to another, but in no case shall the total
budget exceed the price limitation of $257,848.56.

Funding Source; Funds to support this request are available in the accounts titled VR Field
Programs-Federal in FY 2024, FY2025, and arc anticipated to be available in FY2026 and FY2027
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget with the
ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal years through the Budget Office, without
further Governor and Council approval, if needed and justified.

06-56-56-565010-25380000-102-500731 FY 2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027
Contracts for Program Services $49,950.00 $66,600.00 $69,264.00 $72,034.56

Method of Payment: Payment will be made upon the submittal of monthly invoices that are
received by the 15th day of the following month and is supported by a summary of
activities/completed deliverables that have taken place in accordance with the terms of the contract,
along with a detailed listing of expenses incurred. If otherwise correct and acceptable, payment will
be made for 100% of the expenditures listed. A final invoice is due within 30 days of the end of this
contract. Invoices and receipts shall be submitted electronically to;

Bill Gaffney William;G.Gaffnev@doe.nh.gov
Cc: Susan.S.Roma@doc.nh.gov

Cunlraci between Noriheusi Deafand Hard ufHearing Services and
The New Hampshire Department of Education
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EXHIBIT D

Contraclor Obligations

Contracts in excess of the simplified acquisition threshold (currently set at $250,000) must address
admlhlstrotive, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where the contractors violate or breach
contract terms, and provide for such sanctions ond penalties as appropriate. Reference;
2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and 2 C.F.R. 200. Appendix II. required contract clauses.

The controclor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims
and Statements) applies to the contractor's actions pertaining to this contract.

The Contractor, certifies and affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its
certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understonds and agrees that the
provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 el seq.. apply to this certificafion and disclosure, if any.

Breacti

A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for
debarment as o contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.

Fraud ar>d False Statemerits

The Contractor understands that, if the project which is the subject of this Contract is financed in
whole or in part by federal funds, that if the undersigned, the company that the Controctor
represents, or any employee or agent thereof, knowingly makes any false statement,
representation, report or claim as to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of material used or to
be used, or quantity or quality work performed or to be performed, or mokes any false statement
or representation of a material fact in any statement, certificate, or report, the Contractor and
ony company that the Contractor represents may be subject to prosecution under the provision
of 18 use §1001 and §1020.

Environmental Protection -

(This clause is applicable if this Contract exceeds $150,000. It applies to Federal-aid contracts
only.)

The Contractor is required to comply with all applicable standards, orders or requirements issued
under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857 (h). Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33
U.S.C. 1368). Executive Order i 1738. and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations (40
CFR Port 15) which prohibit the use under non-exempt Federal contracts, grants or loons of
facilities included an the EPA List of Violating Facilities. Violations shall be reported to the FHWA
and to the U.S. EPA Assistant Administrator for Enforcement.

Procurement of Recovered Materials

In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. § 6962), State agencies
and agencies of a political subdivision of a state that are using appropriated Federal funds for
procurement must procure items designated in guidelines of Ihe Environmental Protection

Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR 247 thot contoin the highest percentage of recovered materials
practicoble. consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase
price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired in the preceding fiscal
year exceeded $10,000: must procure solid waste management services in a manner that
maximizes energy and resource recovery; and must have established an affirmative procurement
program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

Conirnr/cy ^
Da/e^5ScO



Exhibit E

Federal Debarment end Suspension

a. By signature on this Controct. the Contractor certifies its compliance, and the compliance
of its Sub-Contractors, present or future, by stating that any person associated therewith in
the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, principal investor, project director,
manager, auditor, or any position of authority involving federal funds:

1. Is not currently under suspension, debarment. voluntary exclusion, or determination of
ineligibility by any Federol Agency:

2. Does not hove o proposed debarment pending;

3. Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntorily excluded or delenmined ineligible by
any Federal Agency within the past three (3) years; and

4. Has not been indicted, convicted, or hod a civil judgment rendered against the firm
by a court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct
within the post three (3) years.

b. Where the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to the statement in Section
0.1. above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall be declared ineligible to enter into
Contract or participate in the project.

c. Where the Contractor or Sub-Controctor is unable to certify to any of the statements as
listed in Sections a.2., a.3.. or a.4., above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall submit

a written explanation to the DOE. The certification or explanation shall be considered in
connection with the DOE's determination whether to enter into Contract.

d. The Contractor shall provide imrhediote written notice to the DOE if. at any time,
the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor, learn that its Debarment and Suspension
certification has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances..

Contractor mitiob.



Exhibit F

Anti-lobbying

The Controctor agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Low 101-121,
Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further
agrees to have the Controctor's representative, execute the following Certification:

The Contractor certifies, by signing and submitting this controct, to the best of his/her kno.wledge
and belief, thot:

a. No federol opproprloted funds hove been paid or shell be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence any officer or
employee of any State or Federal Agency, a Member of Congress, on officer or employee
of Congress, or on employee of o member of Congress in connection with the owording
of any Federal contract, the making of ony federal grant, the making of ony federal loan,
the entering into any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal
amendment, or modification of any Federoi controct grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement.

b. If ony funds other than federally "oppropriated funds hove been paid or sholl be paid to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
Federal Agency, o Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in conneclion with this Federal contract, grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit the "Disclosure of
Lobbying Activities" form in accordance with its instructions
fhttp://www.whitehouse.aov/omb/arbnts/sflllin.Ddfl.

c. This certification is o materiai representotion of fact upon which reliance was placed when
this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite
for making and entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 and U.S.
Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

d. The Contractor also agrees, by signing this contract thot it shall require that the language
of this certification be included in subcontracts with all Sub-Contractor{s) and lower-tier
Sub-Contractors which exceed $100,000 and thot all such Sub-Contractors and lower-tier
Sub-Contractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.

e. The DOE shall keep the firm's certification on file as part of its original contract. The
Contractor shall keep individual certifications from all Sub-Contractors ond lower-tier Sub-
Contractors on file. Certification shall be retained for three (3) years following completion
and acceptance of any given project.

Contractor

Od/e^S3^



Exhibit G

Rights to Inventions Mode Under a Contract, Copy Rights and Confidentiality

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement
Gonlracts or agreements for ttie performance of experimental, developmental, or researcti work
shall provide for the rights of the Federal Government and the recipient In ony resulting invention
In accordance with 37 CFR port 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and
Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and.
any implementing regulations issued by the DOE.

Any discovery or invention that arises during the course of the controct shall be reported to the
DOE. The Contractor is required to disclose inventions promptly to the contracting officer {within 2
months) after the inventor discloses it in writing to controctor personnel responsible for patent
matters. The awarding agency shall determine how rights in the invention/discovery shell be
allocated consistent with "Government Patent Policy" and Title 37 C.F.R. § 401.

Confidentiality

All Written and oral information and materials disclosed or provided by the DOE under this
agreement constitutes Confidential Information, regardless of whether such information was
provided before or after the dote on this agreement or how it was provided.

The Contractor and representatives thereof, acknowledge that by making use of, acquiring or
adding to information about matters and data related to this agreement, which are confidential
to the DOE and its partners, must remoin the exclusive property of the DOE.

Confidential information means all data and information reloted to the business and operation of
the DOE, including but not limited to all school and student data contained in NH Title XV,
Education. Chapters 186-200.

Confidential information includes but is not limited to, student and school district dole, revenue
and cost information, the source code for computer software and hardware products owned in
part or in whole by the DOE, financial information, partner Informationfincluding the identity of
DOE partners). Contractor and supplier information, (including the identity of DOE Contractors
and suppliers), and any information that has been morked "confidential" or "proprietary", or with
the like designation. During the term of this contract the Contractor agrees to abide by such rules
as may be adopted from time to time by the DOE to maintain the security of all confidential
information. The Contractor further agrees that it will always regard and preserve as confidential
information/data received during the performance of this contract. The Contractor will not use,
copy, moke notes, or use excerpts of any confidential information, nor will it give, disclose, provide
access to, or otherwise moke ovoiloble any confidential information to any person not employed
or controcfed by the DOE or subcontracted with the Contractor.

Ownership of Intellectual Property
The DOE shall retain ownership of oil source data and other intellectual property of the DOE
provided to the Contractor in order to complete the services of this ogreerhent. As well the DOE
will retoin copyright ownership for any and all materials, patents and intellectual property
produced. Including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols, guidelines,
posters, or reports. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials for purposes other than use
for the terms under the contract without prior written approval from the DOE.

Confrocfor Infl/oJs,

Odfe



Corporate Rcsolation

I, Peter Simoneau, hereby certify that I am duly elected Secretary of

Northeast Deaf aod Harding of Hearing Services. I hereby certify the following is a true

copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and

held on January 16,2023, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and

voting.

VOTED: That Michelle McConaghy the Executive Director is

duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services with the State of New Hampshire and any of

its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any documents

which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of

this vole.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force

and effect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This authority

remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Corporate Resolution. I further certify

that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that

the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full

authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any

listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

A

limitations are expressly stated herein.

DATED: /^ /c/7VZ') ATTEST^^^^^^C ScrT-r
'  t (Name & Title)



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan. Secrelar>' of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD

OF HEARING SERVICES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprotlt Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

April 28. 2000. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in

good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 344894

Certificate Number: 0005777286

SI

la.

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alTixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 16th dav of Mav A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar\' of State



ACORD* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMfOOfYYYY)

06/20/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE.OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

HAME*^^ Eleanor Spinazzola
,Kr,„. IS"') 293-2791 (603)293-7188

Anf«F«i«i- Eleanorspinazzola@esinsurance.net

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICI

INSURER A • AmTrust Financial Services. Inc.
INSURED

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Heating Services. Inc.

56 Old Suncook Road, Suite 6

Concord NH 03301

INSURER B : .

INSURER C :

INSURER D:

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTf^CT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALLlHE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

5D5R1 = POLICY EfF POLICY EXP | TiZTI
VWD • POLICY NUMBER tMM/OO/YYYYI (MM/ODrnrYY> LIMITSTYPE OF INSURANCE

jm:

mss
1?^
LTR .

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LtABIUTY

CLA1M$4MDE X\ OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DALUCE TO RENTLO
PREMISES (Ea occufrence)

07/01/2023 07/01/2024

MEO EXP (Any one peiton)

PERSONAL A ADV INJURY

GENX AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE

POLICY

OTHER:

LOC PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

1.000.000

100.000

5.000

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddgnt)

1.000.000

eOOILY INJURY (Per parsen)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NONOWNED

AUTOS ONLY

07/01/2023 07/01/2024 BODILY INJURY (Par accldani)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Pef acddenp

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
1.000.000

07/01/2023 07/01/2024
AGGREGATE

DEO X RETENTION S
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVE

OFFICER/ME»;eER EXCLUDED?
(MandatoiY In NH)
If yes. OescnM under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

□
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS ILOCATIOHS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddlUontl Remarks Schedule, may be anached If more space Is required)

NHED

25 Hall St

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)

01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Ail lights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



/XCORD'

NORTDEA-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

SCOLE

DATE (MM/DDATYY)

4/24/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an'ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDmONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

Davis & Towie Morriil & Everett, inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

CONTACT SherrI A. Cole, ACSR

TSVex,): (603) 715-9764 . (^.no):(603) 225-7935
scole(^davistowle.com

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

iNsuRERAiTraveiers Insurance 19046

INSURED

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.
56 Old Suncook Road Suite 6

Concord, NH 03301

INSURER a :BCS InsurancB ComDanv

INSURER C;

INSURER 0 r

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

jja. TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADOL

msB.
SUBR

YUQ. POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMM/DD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
<MM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

CLAiMS-MAOE [ I OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES <Ea occurrwvsal

MED EXP tAnv one pysonl

PERSONAL h AOV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMfT APPLIES PER:

POLICY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea aecidftnP

ONLY

SCHEDULED
ALR-OS

BODILY INJURY (Pw pacsonl

BODILY INJURY (Per accidanO

reOPERTY DAMAGE
{Pv accident)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LtAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE|^Fl^EFVM^Mg|R EXCLUDED?
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Yf N 4/14/2023 4/14/2024

V I PER
^ I STATUTE

OTH
ER

Nf A
E.L EACH ACCIDENT

500,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
500,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
500,000

Cyber Liability 11/16/2022 11/16/2023 2,500 ded/retention 2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AddlUonel Remerks Schedule, mey beeneched If morespece It required)
Workers Compensation 3A States: NK

"•"Excess Cyber Liability*"

Scottsdale Insurance Company - Policy # EKS34S4911
Policy Period • 11/16/2022 -11/16/2023
$3,000,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability - $2,500 deductible/retention

NHED

25 Hall Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CeLt_
ACORD 25(2016/03) © 1986-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



U U NDHHS
Northeast.Oeaf and Hard

of Hearing Services. INC.

56 Old Suncook Road Suite 6, Concord, NH 03301
603-224-1850 Voice, 603-968-5889 VP

603-856-0242 Fax, 603-224-0691 TTY.
www.ndhhs.org

Mission Statement

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services (NDHHS) is dedicated to serving
Deaf and Hard of Hearing individuals In an environment that is
communicatively unrestricted and "natural" to them. NDHHS is committed to
hiring staff members who are fluent in sign language and capable of identifying
and meeting consumers' preferred mode of communication. NDHHS seeks to
empower, educate and advocate for equal access and opportunity for Deaf and
Hard of hearing citizens of New Hampshire. We are committed to the provision
of services in a culturally sensitive . environment, which promotes
independence and productivity.



Form .NHCT-12

New Hampshire Annual Report
Charitable Organizations and Trusts

Mail to:
NH Attorney General
Charitable Trusts Unit
33 Capitol Street
Concord. NH 03301-6397

For year end date
(include
beginning date if
multiyear report):

06-30-2022

X $75 filind fee or 1 1 Fee breviouslv oaid with extension reouest
Financial reooit either 1 1 Schedule A or 1 x 1 IRS Form 990 or

or 1 1 IRS Form 990-PF
Probate account fif orobate trust)

IRS Form 990-EZ

>: Governina board list: Schedule B II Withdrawal reoort: Schedule E (if final reodrt)
Charitable gift annuity certification: Schedule D (if any annuities issued)

Also, include and check off the following if required • for organizadons based in NH:

S? '0000101 of intere'st/dovernance report: Schedule C (not required for Form 990-PF filers)
1 If revenue exceeds $500.000. GAAP financial statement

OR

f revenue exceeds $1 million, audited financial statement
(neither is required for Form 990-PF filers)

NQRTIltlAST DEAF AMD HARD OF HF:aR1HG SERVICES. INC.

Name of organization or trust

5G OLD SUNCOOK ROAD,SUITE 6

Mailing Address

CONCORD, NH 03301

City, State Zip

Name and title of annual report contact: Michelle

NH Charitable Trust Registration No.

I  I Check if new name or address

iittps : //ndhhs ■ orq/
Website address

McConqaghy

Contact email address:mlchellegndhhs. org Telephone: 603) 22^-1850

Under penalty of perjury (RSA 641:1-3), I declare
all schedules, and to the best of my knowledge

.10-20-2022

Date

Treasurer

Title (president, treasurer, or trustee of
express trust, NOT executive director)

CERTIFICATION

exa

gn

Lctrry Farrel.l

^ this Annual Report, including
plete.

Y

Name (Print or Type)

Signed and fore me this date by tl^e above-named person

CtMy Comrhi^bn.E5pfW§:^/civ*$&

1  : §
^ -'.Q, • <024 J §

NHCT.12 (March

Suj^

I
Notary Public

1W2BA 5.000



NHCT Form 12 SCHEDULE A

Organization Name ! NOP.THKAST OEAF AND HARD Or H.-.ARING SERVICES. INC.
For year end date:

06-30-2022

FINANCIAL REPORT

(Note: Filers of IRS Form 990, 990-EZ or 990-PF submit that form instead of Schedule A)

A. Employer identification number (EIN) .02-0517861

B. Federal tax exempt status (check one): [ED 501{c){3)[IIl 501 (c)( ) (insert number) F"! Not tax exempt
CU Check here if IRS Form 1023 or 1023-EZ application is pending
O Check here if part of IRS group tax exemption. Name of central organization:

Part I Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

C. Describe the organization's primary charitable purpose: serving deaf s hjrd oi iieaiina i»dividuai3

A. D. Describe briefly, for each of the organization's largest programs (measured by expenses),
the services provided, the number of persons benefited, and other information. Be sure these
amounts are also included within the expense categories in Part II, lines F8 through F16
below.

1. The oroaiiiztition relers iiicocpceUers for rontrin^ .inri erngrgoncv

OQUfescs I'roin the deaf < hard oC hertriiia throughout Mew hamDshlre.

2. The Organization offeres eduction and accessto the deaf and
hearing individulas in the state of.New Hampshire.

3_. Adult education and basic skills

lard

Program Expenses

1. 300,613.00

of

2. 462,575.00

3. 101,375.00

1VV3288 5,000



NHCT Form 12 SCHEDULE A For year end date:
Organization Name : NORTHEAST DEAK AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC. 06-30-2022

Part II Revenue and Expenses

E. Revenue

1. Donations and grants received (not fundraising events) $  305,671.00

2. Program service revenue (received from those getting services) $  692,781.00

3. Membership fees $

4. Interest and dividends

o
o

CO

5. Gross receipts from special fundraising events and activities $

6. Other revenue $  160,612.00

7. Total revenue (add lines 1 through 6) $  1,159,148.00

F. Expenses

8. Cash and benefit amounts paid to unrelated persons or groups' $.
9. Cash and benefit amounts paid to or for directors or members $,
10. Compensation of officers, directors, & key employees $ 82, 456.00
11. Other salaries & wages $ 407,656.00
12. Payroll taxes & employee benefits $ 55., 851.00
13. Professional fees and other payments to independent contractors $ 210,786.00
14. Occupancy, rent, utilities, insurance $ 57, 824.00
15. Printing, publications, postage, office supplies, IT $.
16. Other expenses $ 175,518.00

17. Total expenses (add lines 8 through 16) $ 990,091.00

G.Net Income (net loss) (subtract line 17from line7): $ 169,057.00

1W328C S.OOO



NHCTForm 12 SCHEDULE A For year end date:
OrQanization Name: northeast deaf and hard of hearing services, inc.- 06-30-2022

Part III Balance Sheet

H. Assets

1. Cash, savings, investments ■ $ 329,500.00
2. Real estate less any depreciation $
3. Other property and equipment less any depreciation $ 17,519.00
4. Pledges, grants, accounts receivable $ 239,282.00
5. Other assets $ 10,995.00

6. Total assets (add lines 1 through S) S 597,296.00

I. Liabilities

7. Accounts payable $ 21,109.00
8. Loans, grants payable $
9. Other liabilities . $ - 74,997.00

10. Total liabilities (add lines 7 through 9) $ 96,106.00

J. Fund Balance/Net worth (subtract line 10 from line 6) $ 501,187.00
K. Amount of fund balance that are donor restricted funds $
L Fund Balance/Net worth at prior year end (prior year's Line J) $ 332, 131.00
M. Subtract Line L from Line J $ 169,056.00

N. Explain reason for change in fund balance (Line M):
DepreciaCion adjustment:

Part IV Other information

O. Did the organization experience any significant thefts, embezzlements, or other
diversions of assets during the reporting period? Yes No. If yes, explain:

IW32eD 5.000



NHCT Form 12 SCHEDULE B Organization Name:
nOSTHEAST DEAF A.KD HARD OF HEAF.IN'G SERVICES, IKC.

For date end date:
06-30-2022

GOVERNING BOARD LIST'

All organizations are required to submit to a list of governing board members.

For organizations based in New Hampshire, provide all of the information set forth in the chart below. Note: boards of
directors of nonprofit corporations formed in New Hampshire (RSA Oh. 292) must consist of at least five persons unrelated by
blood or marriage. RSA 292:6-a. This requirement does not apply to IRS Form 990-PF filers.

For organizations not based in New Hampshire, it is acceptable to submit (in lieu of the following chart) a copy of the board
list appearing at IRS Form 990, Part VII or Form 990-EZ, Part IV or Form 990-PF, Part VIII.

Name Position

held

Home address Daytime
phone

Email address Av. Hours

per week
devoted to

position

Compensation
and benefits

paid (enter 0 if
none)

SEE ATTACKED LIST

1 Please note that the organization is permitted to submit its own spreadsheet in lieu of Schedule B, as long as the spreadsheet contains the information requested
in Schedule B. For New Hampshire-based organizations and trusts, the Charitable Trusts Unit requires the home addresses, tetephorte numbers, and email
addresses of board members so that the Unit can contact the board members individually, if needed, apart from management. The personal contact information is

not subject to public disclosure.

1V/32BE 5.000



10/25/22. 10:00 AM Our Board - Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Inc.

NDHHS
Northeast Deaf and Hard

of Hearing Services, INC.

SEARCH

NlWS DONATE"

©
Northeast Deaf and Hard

©  of Hearing Services, INC.

CONIACi !.!S

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services

Our Board Members
The governing board of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing consists of nine

to eleven members. At least fifty-one percent of the board must be Deaf or

Hard of Hearing. The primary duties of the board are to supervise the

Executive Director, develop policies for the agency, oversee the agency's

finances and to raise funds. Between meetings, members are expected.to be

on committees and to actively raise funds. The average commitment for our

board members is about four hours per month.

CONTACT US ABOUT [OINING OUR BOARD

https://ndhh8.org/our-board/ 1/8
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Michael Ritter

Executive Committee

Term Ends: October 2024

Norman Lafond Sr,

Executive Committee

- Term Ends: October 2024

https://ndhhs.org/our-board/ 2/8
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Peter Simoneau

Executive Committee

Term Ends: January,2025

Deborah Bailey

Board Member

Term Ends: January 2024

Lawrence Farrell

Executive Cornmittee

Term Ends: January 2025

Vincent Youmatz

Executive Committee - Legal Counsel

Term Ends: October 2024

Tina Cook

https://ndhhs.org/our-board/ 3/8
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Board Member

Term Ends: October 2022

Gerry Monroe

Board Member

Term Endsijuly 2022

Christopher Emerson

Board Member

Term Ends: July 2024

Susan Wolf-Downes

Board Member

Term Ends: October 2024

Lori McLaren

Board Member

Term Ends: January 2024

Rickey Persons

https-7/ndhhs.org/our-board/



NHCT Form 12 SCHEDULE C

Organization Name! northeast deak anu hard of hearing sep.vicf.s. rue.
For year end date:
06-30-2022

CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Required for.all New Hampshire-based charitable organizations, except those that file an IRS
Form 990-PF.

1. Has there been a change made to the organization's conflict of interest policy?
Yes No X (If yes, attach new policy)

2. Did any officer, director, trustee, or member of his/her immediate family, or his/her
employer/business (hereinafter an "interestedperson") obtain a pecuniary benefit
(see RSA 7:19-a) from the organization in the last year? Yes No x

3. Did the organization make a real estate transaction with or occupy real estate owned or

rented by an interested person? Yes No ^

4. Was an advance or payment made on a loan to or from an interested person?

Yes No X

5. For each "yes" answer to questions 2, 3, or 4, provide the following:

Name/Relationship
of Interested Person

Name of

Director/Officer/T rustee

Description of Transaction

(i.e. car sale, salary, etc.)

Amount

6. Did any of the pecuniary benefit transactions listed In No. 5 above amount to $5,000 or
more per transaction? Yes No X
If yes, attach and check each of the following: LJ notice letter sent to this office Lj newspaper
notice jUl excerpt of board meeting minutes approving transaction

NOTE: The Director of Charitable Trusts may request copies of additional documentation
relating to any pecuniary benefit transaction. RSA 7:24.

7. Has the organization amended its formation documents (articles of agreement, declaration
of trust, constitution) or its bylaws within the reporting period?
Yes No X If yes, attach a copy of the new documents.

8. How many times did the board of directors meet during the reporting period?

9. Did the organization use a professional solicitor, fundraising counsel, or commercial co-
venturer to solicit contributions on the organization's behalf during the reporting period?
Yes No X If yes. list their names and addresses:

10. Was the organization the subject of any fine, penalty, or adverse judgment? Yes
yes. attach copy of document.

11. Is the organization a "fiscal sponsor" for another organization? Yes.
name and address of each organization.

No X . If

No X If yes, list the

1W32SP S.OOO



NHCT Form 12 Schedule D For year end date:
Organization Name: northeast deaf ahd hard of hearing services, inc. 06-30-2022

CHARITABLE GIFT ANNUITY CERTIFICATION

Required for all charitable organizations that issue charitable gift annuities in New
Hampshire.

1. The person signing NHCT Form 12 on behalf of this organization certifies that
the organization has entered into one or more charitable gift annuity
agreements in New Hampshire and that each such agreement is and shall be a
qualified charitable gift annuity (as defined in NH RSA403-E:1, V) in that on the
date of the annuity agreement, it (check each of the following to certify):

I  I Has a minimum of $300,000 in unrestricted^cash, cash equivalents,
or publicly traded securities, exclusive of the assets funding the
annuity agreement;

I  I Has been in continuous operation for at least 3 years or is a
successor or affiliate of a charitable organization thafhas been in
continuous operation for at least 3 years;

I  I Issues charitable gift annuities with payout ratios no greater than
recommended by the American Council on Gift Annuities at the time
of issuance;

I  I Retains 100 percent of the contribution made in exchange for each
charitable gift annuity, increased by earnings on the contribution and
decreased by annuity payments and expenses properly allocated to
the annuity, until the annuity is terminated; and

I  I Invests contributions made in exchange for charitable gift annuities
solely in conformance with article 9 of RSA 564-B, general standards
of prudent investment.

2. Check the applicable box: □ Initial notification or □ Annual recertification

iw32ec 5.000



NHCT Form 12 SCHEDULE E

Organization Name - NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES,

WITHDRAWAL REPORT

INC.

For year end date;
06-30-2022

Complete for any organization that is withdrawing its registration as a New
Hampshire charitable organization or trust.

1. Reason for withdrawal (check only one and attach requested document):

AI 1 Dissolution of NH nonprofit corporation: attach Secretary of State Form NP-5

B n Merger of NH nonprofit corporation: attach minutes of the board meeting at which the
vote to merge was approved

cCH Express trust termination: attach document reflecting termination

dCD Dissolution of unincorporated association: attach minutes of the board meeting at
which the vote to dissolution was approved

E O Cessation of charitable activities (only for non-§501 {c)(3) organizations): attach minutes
of board meeting at which the vote to cease charitable activities was approved

F n Withdrawal from NH of foreign nonprofit corporation: attach Secretary of State
Form. FNP-5. if not filed with NH Secretary of State, attach dissolution document filed
in your state (NOTE: most recent annual report must be filed before closure).

2. Distribution of assets (not required if box 1F is checked above)

Assets (by type and value): (if box IE checked, list only organization's charitable assets)

Donor restrictions on use of any assets:

Legal name of recipient organization (Fill out one
Schedule E for each recipient org if more than one)

Federal tax identification number

Mailing address Website address

City, State, Zip Date of distribution

Recipient organization contact name/title Contact email address

Recipient organization federal tax status (check one)
[Z] 501(c)(3) d] 501(c)( ) (insert number) [_] Not tax exempt

Contact telephone number

1W32BH S.OOO
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Form 990
Oipartmen of ihe Trtasiry
MiemM RMnue Sanies

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Und«r tection S01{C), 527, or 4947(a)(l} of the Intomal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

^ Do not enter social security numbers on this form as It may be made public.
► Go to www.lra.(tOY/Form930 lot Instnictlons and the latest Information.

OM9 Na iSaSOtM?

2021
Open to Public

Inspection

B 0)e:k II apDfcablc:

r~l AdOicss change
n Nam» chftige
[~~| Inidal wum
rn Final (Wurw
LJ lerminatBd

[~~| Amsnifld (Wuin
n Appfcatnn pendng

C Norrw or orgarizalod

Northeast Deaf 6 Hard of Hearinq Se

0 Employer Uantiricatlon number

02-0517861Doing buslnets n
rAr»er ma gntt (or P.O. box if msB tt not otSmd »itrM addrsM) Koomisuie
56 Old Suncook Road, Suite 6

E Tatapnone number

Oty Of town, stats or prowics. country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

Concord NH 03301 0 Gross reetfptsS 1,159,149
F Nonw and adOess of pnrxapoi offlcsf:

Michelle McConaghy
40 Plateau Ridge Road
Loudon NH 03307

H<i) .is tnis a group rekxTi tor suftotdiules? Q Yes ^ No
H(t)) Are oS suMfdnatBS tauded? 1 1 YSS | j NO

If "MO.* aiiacn a ist. Saa instructtoru

H(c) GrouD eamotton rurOar ^

1  (tatua: iX] SOIlarS) 1 1 SOIfrt ( J M finwn no.l 1 | ^7(aX1> or j | S?7'
j  wetalun ► WWW. ndhhs. ora

33K  Fcrm et doanlatian: Ccrperafcn Tnjsi Atsocislon' Ohet^ II Yeerc<tormatot 2001 |h Sbbofieoriderricis'. NH
Paitt Summary

1 Briefly descnPe the or^anizaticxi's mission or most significant activities:
See Schedule O

2 Check this box ^ Q if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
•ft 3 Nunkber of voting members of the governing body {Part VI. Sne 1a) 3 10

K! 4 Nun^r of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI. line lb) 4 10

T 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2021 (Part V. line 2a) 5 15
u 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) 6 20

7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII. column (C). line 12 7a 0
b Net unrelat^ business taxable income from Form 990-T. Part I. line 11 . 7b 0

Prior Y«sr. Currerrt Ynr
8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 184.599 305,671

3
e 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII. line 2g) 474 .274 691,208
Io 10 Investment income (Part VIII. column (A), lines 3, 4. arxJ 7d) 214 84
q: 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), tines 5. 6d, 8c. 9c. 10c. and lie) 162,186

12 Total reverxie - add lines 8 throuoh 11 (must eoual Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 659,087 1,159,149
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX. column (A), lines 1-3) 0
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part iX, column (A), line 4) 0

s
p

15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX. column (A), lines 5-10) 382,730 582,444
16aProfessional fundraising fees (Part IX. column (A), line lie) 0

&
tS

b Total fundraislrrg expenses (Part IX, column (D). line 25) ► 0
17 Other expenses (Part IX. column (A), lines 1la-11d. 11f-24e) 325,583 407,647
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 708.313 990,091
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 -49,226 169,058

BealmInG of Currant Year EndofYsor

20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 547,911 597,296
21 Total UabmUes (Fart X. line 26) 224,547 96,108
22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 323,364 501,188

Parl II Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, I
true, correct, apd

►
►

that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the tiest of my knowledge and belief, it is
•^rer (other than ofTiccr) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign
Here

I or offlcer I VV7 ' ^
Michelle McCon

Date

Executive Director
Tyo« or pnrx rwm* ana lltl«

Paid

Preparer
Use Only

Printriyoa oeparar's rwne

Brian F. McLarney

Prepsior'* rioiaiurc

Brian F. McLaroey

Date

10/25/22

Check I I li^
SCj|«T)C<OyM

PTIN

F00361037

ftrrfg rwrna ► McLamev & Company flrntaEWk 04-3073912

Firm's ackkess

6 Courthouse Ln # 15
Chelmsford, MA. 01824-1724 978-453-2222

[a^Yes NoMay the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, tee the aeparete Instructions.
□AA

Form 990 (2(C1)
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Form 990 (2021) Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Se 02-0517861. Page 2
Part III Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part III 1^
1  Briefly describe the orgar^ation's mission:

See Schedule O

2  Did Ihe organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? Q Yes [§ No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
services? D,
if "Yes," describe these changes on .Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization's program senrice accon^fishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,

the total expenses, and revenue, if any. for each program sendee reported.

4a (Code; . )"(Expenses $ 246,563 including grants of $ ) (Revenue 5 ?00 , 613 )
THE ORO^IZATION 'QU^IFIED INTERPRETORS ' TOR BO
E^RGENCi * 'requests BRCM THE DEJ^' 'wto' 'HATO' 'QP 'HEARING' 'THROUGH^ T^ STATO ,.
OF new' ■ 'ha^shipe

4b (Code: ) (Expenses $ 462 ,575 including grants of S . ) (Revenue $ 289 , 220 )
THE OR(^'lZATIpN ' EDUCTION _ ACCESS TO^ TKE. DE^.. ..lU^.. OP
WF.'Ar'tw^'' Vi^'tv^ in" the' ' 'state ' OF NH , WITH . OF
AC'CE's's"'"AVAliABiE''''M's6URCES' 'SUCH^ AS'^' C
woi^SHOPs .'

4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ 121,959 including grants of S ) (Revenue i 101, 375 )
ADULT "education Airo"BASi'c" SICL'lLS

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)

(Expenses S indudinq grants of S ) (Revenue S }
4e Total program service expenses ► 831, 097

Qim Fonn 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021) Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Se 02-0517861 ■Page 3

Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules

10

11

Yos No

1  Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation}? If "Yes,"
complete Schedule A

2  Is the orgartzation required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instaictlons)?
3  Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to

candidates for public ofTice? If 'Yes,'complete Schedule C. Pert I
4  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)

election in effect during the lax year? If "Yes." complete Schedule C. Pert II
5  Is the organization a section 501(c)(4). 501(c)(5). or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-19? If "Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part III
6  Did the organization maintain any dor>or advised funds or any simBar funds or accounts for wttich donors

have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investn^nt of amounts in such funds or accounts? If
*Yes,"comp/efe Schedule D. Part /_

7  Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space.
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If ~Yes. " complete Schedule D. Part II

8 " DkJ the organization maintain collections of works of art. historical treasures, or other similar assets? If 'Yes.'
complete Schedule D. Part III

9  Did the organization report an amount in Part X. line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, aedit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If 'Yes," complete Schedule D. Part IV
IDid the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi endowments? If 'Yes.' compfefe Schedule D. Part V
If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Ves." then compleie Scfiedute D. Parts VI,
Vtl. VIII. iX. or X. as applicable,

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes,'
complete Schedule D. Part VI

b Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12. that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X. line 16? II "Yes/comptefe Schedule D. Part VII

c Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13. that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X. line 16? if "yes.' compleie Schedule D. Part VIII

d Wd the organizaton report an amount for other assets in Part X. line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X. line 16? If "Yes.' complete Schedule D. Part IX

e DkJ the organization report, an amount for other tiabilities in Part X. line 25? If "Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part X
1  Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes." complete Schedule D, Part X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the lax year? If 'Yes." complete

Schedule D. Parts XI and XII
b Was the orgarttzation included In consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If

"Yes," atKl if the organization answered 'No' to ffne 12a. then completing Schedule 0. Parts XI and XII is rational
13 is the organization a school described in section l70(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If "Yes." complete Schedule £
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?

b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmakir>g,
fundraising. business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If yes.'complete Schedule F. Parts I and IV

15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3. more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If "Yes." complete Schedule F. Parts II and IV

16 Did the organization report on Part IX. column (A), line 3. more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign irxlividuals? If "Yes.' complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV

17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraiskig senrices on
Part IX. column (A), lines 6 and 1 le? If yes.' complete Schedule G. Part I. See Instructions

.18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIII, fines lc and 8a? If yes.' complete Schedule G, Part II

19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part Vlll. line 9a?
If yes,' compfefe Schedule G. Part III

20a Did the organization operate or>e or more hospital facilities? If 'Yes." complete Schedule H
b  If *Yes* to line 20a. did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return?

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX. column (A). Prie 1? If yes.'complete Schedule. I. Parts I arid II

X

10

11a

11b

11c

lid

lie

llf

12a

12b

13

14a

14b

15

16

17

18

19

20a

20b

21

X

X

JL

JL

X

X

A.
X

Fom 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021) Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Se 02-0517861 Page 4

Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes No

22 Did the organization report more than S5.000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on

Part IX, column (A), line 2? If "Yes." complete Schedule 1. Parts 1 and III 22 X

23 Did the organization answer "Yes* to Part VII. Section A. line 3, 4. or 5 about compensation of the

organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated

employees? ff "Yes, * complete Schedule J 23 X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than

$IOO,OCX3 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 3i, 2002? If "Yes," answer lines 24b

through 24d and complete Schedule K. If "No." go to line 2Sa 24a X

b Did the organization Invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b

c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year

to dcfease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c

d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d

2Sa Section 501(c)(3), 501(cK4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit

transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes." complete Schedule L. Part 1 25a X

b  Is the organization aware that It engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-E2?
If "Yes.' complete Schedule L. Pert I 25b X

2B Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, aeator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If "Yes." comptefe Schedule L. Part II 26 X

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any currenl or former officer, director, trustee, key
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee

member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee IheteoO or family member of any of these

persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L. f^rt III 27 X

28 Was the organization a parly to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see the Schedule L.
Part IV. instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a A currenl or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or tounder. or substantial contributor? If

■Yes." comptefe Schedule L. Part IV 28a X

b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If "Yes." complete Schedule L. Part IV 28b X

c  A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? If
"Yes." complete Schedule L.-Part IV ■ 28c X

29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If 'Yes." complete Schedule M 29 X

30 Did the organizaliori rece'ive contrlbufions of art. historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If "Yes." complete Schedule M 30 X

31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule N. Part 1 31 X

32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of. or transfer more than 25% of Its net assets? If "Yes."
complete Schedule N. Part II 32 X

33 Did the organization ovm 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301J701-3? If Yes," comptefe Schedule R. Part 1 33 X

34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes." complete Schedule R. Part II. III.
or IV. and Part V, line i 34 X

35a DkJ the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 3Sa X

b  If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a
controlled entily within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? if "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . 35b

36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make, any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If "Yes." complete Schedule R, Part V. line 2 36 X

37 Did the organization conduct rrrare than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If "Yes."complete Schedule R, Part VI 37 X

38 Did the organization complete Schedule 0 and provide explanations on Schedule 0 for Part VI, lines 11 b and
19? Note: All Form 990 filers are required lo cbmcriete Schedule.O. 38 X

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Q

Yos No

la Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- If not applicable la 4

b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line la. Enter -O- if not applicable lb 0

c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportaWe payments to vendors and
.  rcDOrtable oarriino faarribBha) winnlnqs to prize winners? 1c

OAA Fomi 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021) Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Se 02-0517861 Paoe 5

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)' Yes No

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3. Transmittal of Wage and Tax

Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return 2a 15

b if at least one Is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b X

Note: If the sum of lirres la and 2a Is greater than 250. you may be required to e*Afe. See instructions.

3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a X

b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If 'No'to line 36. provide an explanation on Schedule 0 3b

4a At any time during the calendar year, did the orgarvzation have an interest in. or a signature or other authority over.

a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4a . X

b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country ►
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR),

Sa Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any trne durirrg the tax year? Sa X

b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b X
c If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b. did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5c

6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000. and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6a X

b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation en express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? 6b

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods

and services provided to the payor? 7a

b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 7b

c Did the organization sel, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required to file Form 8282? 7c

d If Tfes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year 7d

e DkJ the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal ber>efit contract? 70

f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f

fl If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required?
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, txjats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did tfie organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during ihe year? 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? 9a

b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor. dorx)r advisor, or related person? 9b

10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter;
a Inftiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIIl, line 12 10a

b Gross receipts, included on Form 990. Part Vlli, line 12, for putdic use of dub facilities 10b

11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
a Gross income from members or shareholders 11a

b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.) lib

12a Section 4947(a)(1) non«oxempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a

b If "Yes." enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year 12b *

13 Section S01(cH29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is tfie organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a

Note: See tfie instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule 0.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which

the organization is licensed lo issue qualified health plans 13b

c Enter the amount of reserves on hand 13c

14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning senrices during the tax year? 14a X
b if "Yes," has It filed a Form 720 lo report these payments? If "No."provide en expfanation on Schedule 0 14b

IS is the organization subject to the section 4960 lax on payment(s) of more than 51,000.000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15 X
If "Yes." see instructions and file Fonn 4720. Schedule N.

16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to trie secfion 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16 X
If "Yes." complete Form 4720. Schedule 0. - -•

17 Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, any disqualified person, or mine operator engage in
activities thatWould result in tfie'imposition of an exdse tax under section 4951, 4952 or 4953? 17

If "Yes.' comolete Form 6069.

Pomi 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021) Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Se 02-0517861 Page 6

Part.VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each yes"response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"
response to line 6a, Sb. or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule 0. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI - — fx|

Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes No

1a Enter the number of voting memt>ers of the governing body at the end of the lax year la 10

If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or

If the governing body delegated broad autliortty to an executive commiiiee or similar -

committee, explain on Schedule 0.
10h Enter the number of voting members included on line la. above, who are independent lb

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 X

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
suoervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a manaoemenl company or other person? 3 X

4 Did the oroanization make any significant cfianqes to its govemino documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X

S Did the organizalion become avrare during ifie year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? 5 X

6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? 6 X

7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons v\ho had the povs«r to elect or appoint

one or more members of the governing body? 7a X

b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? 7b X

6 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:
a The governing body? 8a X

h Each committee wth authority lo act on behalf of the governing body? 6b X

9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII. Section A. who cannot I* reached at
ihA fwnaniTnilnn's mailinn «drirftft.s? If yes.' ormide the names and addresses on Schecfute 0 9 X

Section B. Policies (This Section B reauests information about oolicies not reaulred bv the fntemal Revenue Code.)
- Yos No

10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X

b If "Yes." did the organizalion have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters.
10b

Has the oroanization orovided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a X

b Describe on Schedule 0 the process, if any. used by the organization to review this Form 990.

l?a Did the organization have a written conflict of Interest policv? If'No." go fo line 13 12a X

h Were officers directors, or trustees, and kev employees reaulred to disclose annuaily interests that could gK« rise lo conflicts? 12b X

c Did the organization regularly and consistentfy monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If 'Yes."
describe on Schedule 0 how ihls was done 12c X

13 Did the organization have a written whtsUebiower policy? 13 X

14 Did (he organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 X

15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by

independent persons, comparability data, and-contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
Xa The organization's CEO. Executive Director, or lop management official 15a

h Other officers or key employees of the organization ISb X

If Tes" to line 15a or I5b, describe the process on Schedule 0, See inslructions.

16a Did the organizaUon invest in, contribute assets to, or partidpaie in a joint venture or sinfilar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? 16a X

b If "Yes." did the organization follow a written poficy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the

omanizaiion's ekemot status with msoed to such arranoemenls? 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17 Usl the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required lo be filed ► NH
18

19

20

Section 6104 requires an organizalion to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A. it applicable), 990. and 990-T (section 501(c)a5 only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
Own website Q Anolhers website Upon request Q Other (explain on Schedule O)

Describe on Schedule O wtiether (and if so, how) (he organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and
flnancial statements available lo the public during the lax year.
State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records ^

Michelle McConaghy 56 Old Suncook. Road, Suite 6
CONCORD NH 03301 603-224-1850

DAA Fom 990 (2021)
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Poffn 990 (202H Northeast-Deaf .& Hard of Hearing Se 02-0517861 — Page 7

Part Vtl . Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule 0 contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

Section A. Officers. DIroctofs. Trustees. Key Employees, and Highest Componsated Emplovoes

1a Complete this table for aO persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

• List all of Ihie organlzaUon's current ofiicers. directors, trustees (v^ether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E). and (F) if no compensation was paid.

• List all ol the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee.*

• List Ihe organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reporlable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 10g9-NEC) of more Itian
$100,000 from the organizaUon and any related organizations.

• Ust all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated err^loyees who received more than
$100,000 of reportabie compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
• List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the

organization, more than $10,000 of reportabie compensation from the organization and any rotated organizations.
Sm the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above-

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

lA)

Kame and bUo

(0)

Av«fa9a
haul

perwe«K

(Bsi any
houi for

ralaicd

orpanteations
bdow

doitM kna)

iC)

Poaikon

(00 not cnatA more than one

oox. uniMt peraotr is both art
oTicar and a drtrctcmnjstae)

(0)

Haportabia
compematlon

irrxh iha

OTQanizacion {W-21

f099MSO

10KWEC)

(El

RaportaCM
ccmpenaation
imm reiniM

organizstion* (W-2/
loee-Misc/

1099-NEC)

in

Eabmatad amount

or other

compefiealian
fratn the

organcaiion ara)
relateo organtzailon*

9 1

1

3

n

1
ft Former

(1) DEBORAH BAILEY

0.00

X 0 0 0DIRECTOR 0.00

(2) CLAUDE BOUCHER
0.00

X 0 0 0DIRECTOR . , 0.00

(3) Deborah Bed-ley
0.00

X 0 0 0SECRETARY -  0.00

(4) TINA COOK

0.00

X 0 0 0DIRECTOR 0.00

(5) Tina Cook
0.00

X 0 0 0BOARD MEMBER 0.00

(6) Christopher Erne:rsoh
0.00

X 0 0 0DIRECTOR 0.00

(7) LARRY FARRELL
0.00

X X 0 0 0TREASURER 0.00

(8)L0RI MCLAREN
0.00

X 0 0 0DIRECTOR 0.00

(9) NORMAN LAFOND
2.00

X X 0 0 0Executiive .Committee 0.00

(10) MICHAEL HITTER
0.00

X X 0 0 0CHAIRMAN 0.00

(11) PETER SIMONEAU
0.00

X X 0 0 0DIRECTOR 0.00

Fonn 990 (2021)
OAA
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(A)

Name ana tiilo

(B)

Average.
noun

(C)

Petition

(do fiol check nue than one
box. unlost person it both an
officer and a orccor/irueiae)

(0)

Reportabla
comperuaiion

from me

Of^antaKon {W-2/
1099'MISC/

1099J^)

(E)

l^eporteble
compensation

Irom related

0f5nni7aiiC'ni (W-2/
liXO-MlSa

lOUS-NEC)

(F)
F.siirnaied amount

o( oinef

componsalion
liom the

organization and
relatod oiganuailons

(lisi any
noun ien

relaied

organrzalioni
below

ooiied line}

tl
1
E

Oflicar

1

1

A X

(12) SUSAN W0LF-P<)WNES
0.00

X 0 0 0BOARD MEMBER .  0.00

(13) MICHAEL RITTI:r
0.00

X 0 0 0CHAIRMAN 0.00

(14) VINCENT YOUM tTZ

0.00

X 0 0 0Executive Committie 0.00

►

►

►
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section
d Total {add linos 1b and ic)

tK

3  Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key emp
employee on line la? K 'Yes.' complete Schedule J for such indMdu

4  For any Individual listed on line 1a. is the sum of reporlable compens
organization, and related organizations greater than $150,000? If Ye,

oyee, or tiighesi compensated
3

Yos No

X

alien and other compensation from the
." compiele Schedule J for such

4 X

5  Did any person list^ on line 1 a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for corvir-pc r/»nrtpri=vi tn thp omanlzation? If'Yes." comolete Schedule J for such person 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors
1  Compiele this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than S100,0(W of

(Yimnenspt'on frrvn ihp nrnanifrfltlnn Repnri cnmpensalion for the calendar year encfinq with or within the orqanization's tax year.
Name ard tli^ness address .Oescnoijol?of serMces Comoratlon

2  Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more,than SlOO.OOO'of comoensaUon from the orqanlzalion ► o
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Form 990 (2021) Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Se 02-0517861 Paoe 9
Part VIM Statement of RevenueStatement of Revenue

Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIH
(A)

Total rsvarue

IB)
Ralatad or exempi
function ravanue

|C)
UtYaUMad

butinaat ravanue

(0)
Revenue exdudeo

from tax under

aeeiioni 512-5M

II.ea
o _

si
o k.

M5°
Ct>
o c

U ̂

1a Federated campaigns

b Membership dues

c Fundraising events

d Related organizations

o Govemmeni g/anu (conrtuftns)
f M oCier contrtaiUons. gtte. grants,

and dtnlar armunts not Included abow

g Noncash contittudons included In
Ines l8-1f

h Total Add lines 1a-1f

la

lb

1c

Id

10

1f

280,379

25,292

305,671

2a . Progr^ feee

b  Program fees EMIS

c  Madical teferral Eeaa

d  Fandly Sign Langu

f All Other program service revenue

g Total. Add lines 2a-2f

Ousinets Code

483,446 483,446

102.500 102,500

48,160 48,160

20,125 20,125

14,381 14,381

22,596 22,596

691,208

Investment income (Including dividends, interest, and

other similar amounts) ►
Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds ►
Royalties ►

84 84

6b

6a Gross rents

b Less: rentJ expenses

C Rsr^ Inc or (loss)

d Not rental income or (toss)

68

6c

(I) Real (S) Persorel

7a Gross amount ^
sales of assets
odw man invenlxy 7a

b Loss: cost or otrier

oasis and sales exps. 7b
c Gain or Ooss) 7c
d Net gain or (loss)

8a Gross income from fundraising events
(not including S
of conlrltxjtions reported on line
1c). See Part IV, fine 18

(i) secuiiies (i) Otner

8a

8bb Less: direct expenses
c Net income or (toss) from fundraising events

9a Gross income from gaming
activities. See Part iV, line 19 _

b Less; direct expenses

9a

9b

c. Net income or (loss) from gaming activities
10a Gross sales of Inventory, less

returrrs and allowances

b Less: cost of goods sold
c Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory

10a

10b

11a Cxti.ngui6hnent of
b  Mlac IncoiM

d All Other revenue

e Total. Add lines 11a-11d ..

Butkiess Code

160,612 160,612
1,574 1,574

162,186

12 Total rovenuo. See instructions 1,159,149 853,478 0

Fom 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021) Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Se 02-0517861 Pace 10

Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 50UcU3) end 501(c)(4] ofganbalions must complete all cc^umns. All other ot^smallons musl complete column (A).

Check if Schedule 0 contains a response or noie to any line n this Pari IX

Do not Include amounts nportod on lines 6b, 7b,

8b. 9b, and 10b of Part VIII.

|A)
Tom axpenses

IB)
Ptogram mtmw

eipwves

|C)
Marxgwrwrn and
gonetai axpentat

(0)
Fmvaiiing
expenses

1  (kanis and otiec assbtame b dnnestt: orgarizallons

and donvstic gcMmments. Soo Pad IV. ine 21

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic

individuals. See Part IV, line 22
.

3 Grants and other assistance to foreign

organizations, foreign governments, and

foreign individuals. See Pan IV, lines 15 and 16

4  Beneflts paid to or for members

5  Compensation of current officers, directors,

tnjstees. arxl key employees 82,456 71,046 11,410

6  Conpensation not included above to disquatiried

persons (as defined under section 4956(f)(1)] and

persons described in section 4956(cK3KB)

7 Other salaries and wages 407,656 356,683 50,973

8  Pension plan accruals arxl contributions (indude

section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)

9 Other employee benefits 55,851 54.585 1,266

10 PayroP taxes 36,481 32,114 4,367

11 Fees for services (nonempioyees):

a Management

b L^gal 463 463

c Accounting 21,317 8,372 12,945

d Lobbying

0 Professional furdraisJng services. See Part IV. line 17

t  Investment management fees

g Omor. (II lino 1 lg omouni excMOS 10% o< Iw 25, cotumn

(A) anouni bt Ine lig eipoisesonScnedute 0.)

12 Advertising arxj promotion

210,786 203,397 7,389

3.240 1,839 1,401

13 Office expenses 2,731 2.495 236

14 information technology

15 Royalties

16 Ocdiparxry 47,722 42,604 5,118

17 Travel 30,045 29,703 342

18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses

for any federal, slate, or tocal public officials

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings

20 Interest

21 Payments to affiliates .

22 Depredation, depletion, and amortization

23 Insurance

5,640 5,640

10,102 10,102

24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered

above (list miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If

fine 24e amount exceeds 10% of One 25. column

(A) amount, Ust line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)

a  Bad Debt expenses 43,627 43,627

b  Program Expensee 10,657 10,657

c  COGS 0 0

d  Telephone . 9,508 9,508

0 All other expenses 11,809 8,094 3,715

25 Total hmctlorul etoonMS. aou ibK i ivoMh 24« .. . -  . 990,091 831,097 158,994 0

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
otgaiKzailan reported in column (B) joint costs
tibm a oomt^ educational cam^n and
fundaising soScitatioa Cfeck here ► □ if
iollowinQ SOP 98^2 (ASC . 958-720):

OA Fofm 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021^ Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Se 02-0517861 Page 11

Part X Balance Sheet

Check If Schedute 0 contains a response or note lo any line In this Part X n
(A)

Beginning of year
(8)

End of year

Cash—non-inlerest-bearing 404,279

Savings and lemporary cash investments

Pledges and grants receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net ;

Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons

6  Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined

under section 4g58(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4g58(c)(3)(B}

7  Notes and loans receivable, net

8  Inventories for sale or use__.

9  Prepaid expenses and deferred charges

10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other

basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D

b Less: accumulated depreciation

Investments—publicly traded securities

Investments—other securities. See Part iV, line 11

Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 11

intangible assets

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11

Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33)

10a

10b

28,206

94,597

3,439

87,066
69,547 14,390 10c

11

12

13

14

3,000 IS

547,911 16

329,500

72,681

166.601

7,995

17,519

3,000

597,296

26

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Grants payable

Deferred revenue

Tax-exempt bond liabilities

Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D

Loans and other payabies to any current or former officer, director,

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons

Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parlies

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties

Other liabilities (including federal inosme tax. payabies to related third

parties, and other liabilities not Included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D

Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25

17,435 17

18

46,500 19

20

21

22

23

21,258 24

139,354 25

224,547 26

49,108

47,000

96,108

Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here ► |X|
and compioto lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here ^
and complete linos 29 through 33.
Capital slock or trust principal, or cunent funds
Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund
Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds
Total net assets or fund balances
Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances

□

323,364 27

28

29

30

31

323.364 32

547,911 33

501,188

501,188
597,296
Forrn 990 (3Q2I)
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Form 990 (202H Northeast Deaf & Hard of Heaxing Se 02-0517861 Page 12
Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets

1  Total revenue (must equal Part Vili. column (A); line 12) 1 1,159,149

2  Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 990,091

3  Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 3 169,058

4  Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)) 4 323i364

5  Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments- 5

6  Donated services and use of facilities 6

7  investment expenses 7

8  Prior period adjustments 6 8,766

9  Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule 0) 9 0

10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line

32. column (B>) 10 501,188

Part XII Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII a

1- Accounling method used lo prepare Ihe Fofm 990: Q Cash Accrual Q Other
If the orgaruzation chaf>ged its method of accounling from a prior year or checked "Olher," explain on
Schedule O.

2a Were the orgar^zation's finandal slalements compiled of reviewed by an independent accountant?

If "Yes." check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or

reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

[~j Separate basis Q Consolidated basis Q Both consolidated and separate basis
b were the organization's finandal statements audited by an independent accountant?

if "Yes." check a box below to indicate whether the finandal statements for the year were audited on a

separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

n Separate basis Q Consolidated basis Q Both consolidated arxj separate basis
c  If "Ves" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assun>es responsibility for oversight of

the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on

Schedule 0.

3a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as sot forth in the

Single Audit Act and OlvlB Circular A-133?

b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the
required audit or audits, exotain why on Schedule 0 and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits ...

2a

2b

2c

3a

3b

Yos No

X-

Fom 990 (2021)
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SCHEDULE A

(Form 990)

Oepsmneni or (h« Troasu/y
Iniamel Ra^enua Sarvica

Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complata II tha organlzalloo la a aacllon S01<c)(3| organiullon or a aactlon 4947|aK^) norwxampi charliabla trual.

► Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

^ Go to ¥Mw.lfs.aov/Form990 for Instructions.and the latest Information..

OMO Nof 1S4S0647

2021
Open to Public

Inispoctibn

Nainf of tha oryanlzation
Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearino Se

Gmployar iOenliricillon number

02-0517861

The ofganization is nol a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

0
□

11

12

A church, convenlion of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
A school described in section 170(b)(l)(A)(l1). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990),)
A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 176(b)(1)(A)(iii).
A medicai research organization operated in conjunction with a hospilai described in section 170(b)|1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name.
dty, and stale: -

I  j An organization operated for the benefit of a wllege or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170{b)(1)(A)(iv). (Compiele Part II.)
A federal, stale, or local government or governmentai unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).
An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Pan II.)
A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)|vi). (Complete Part II.)
An agricultural research organization described in section 17l>(b)(1)|A)(lx) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and slate of the college or
university:
An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions: and (2) no more than 331/3% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses •
acquired by the organization after June 30. 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part ill.)
An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).
An organizalion organized and operated exclustvefy for the benefit of, to perform the funclioris of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations desaibed in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box on lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organizalion and complete lines I2e, 12f. and 12g,

I  I Typo I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organizalion(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and 8.

|~) Typo II. A supporting organizalion supervised or controlled in connecUon with its supported or9anization(s). by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organizatjon(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

I  I Type 111 functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported orgar^ation(s) (see instructlorts)! You must comploto Part IV, Sections A, 0, and E.

|~j Type III non-functionaily Integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is nol functionally integrated. Ttie organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must comploto Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

|~| Check INs box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II. Type III
functionally integrated, or Type III non-functionaily integrated supporting organizalion.

Enter the number of supported organizations

0

(i) Name of suppofied
organisation

(U| EIN (ifl) Type or o/gar^tion
(oeschood on iws 1-10
above (see Insvuctlons))

(Iv) is the (x^snt^aibn
istoo in your DOVBtrini}

docijtrent?

|v) A/nouni ol monelary
support (see
insiruaiont)

(vi) Amouni of
other suppon (see

mstnxhons)

Yta No

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Total
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Schedule A (Form 9001 2021 Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Se 02 0517861
Part II Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1HA)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Cornplete only if you checked the box on line 5. 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part III. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Calendar year (or fiscal yaar beginning In) ^ (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 (e) 2021 •10 Total

1  Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not

305,671 •305.671

2  Tax revenues levied for the

organization's benefit and either paid

3  The value of services or facilities
furnisfied by a governmental unit to the .  ,

305.671 305.671

5  The portion of lota! contributions by
each person (other than a

govemmental unit or pubticfy
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f)

6  Public SUODort. Subtract line 5 from ine 4 305.671

Saction B. Total Support
Calendar year (or nscat year beginning In) >■

7  Amoonts from line 4
8  Gross income from interest, dividends,

payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources

10

11

12

13

Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularty carried on

Ottier income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VI.)
Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

(a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 (e) 2021 (0 Total
305,671 305.671

s

305.671

(see instructions) 1  12 853,476

First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, (ourth. or fifth lax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, tfieck this box and stop hero ±n

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2021 (line 6, coiurm (0 divided by Ijne 11. column

.Public support percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part II, line 1415

16a

17a

14

15

100.00%

%

18

33 1/3% support test—2021. If the organization did not check the box on line 13. and line 14 is 33 -1/3% or more, check this
t>ox and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
33 1/3% support test—2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check
this box and stop here. The orgariization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop hero. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the facls-and-drcumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization
10%-fact8-and-circumstances test—2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 13. 16a, I6b, or 17a, and line
15 is 10% Of rrxjre. and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization _
Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a. 16b, 17a. or 17b. check this box and see
instructions

► S

Schedule A (Form 990} 2021

DAA
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Schedule A (Fofm 990) 2021 Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Se 02-0517861 Page 3

Part III Support Schedule for Organizations Described In Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only If you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Calendar year (or rscal year beginning In) >
1  Gifts, Qranu. conetudofts. and rnemoefship Iks

recehsd. (Do not InckxM any 'urusud firants.*)

(a) 2017 (b) 2018 (C) 2019 (d) 2020 (e) 2021 (f) Total

2  Gross receipts Irtxn adn^sions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or fadities
furnished in any activity that is related to the

3  Gross receipts from actknties that are rxx an
unrelated trade or business under section 513

4  Tax revenues levied for the

organization's benefit and either paid

,

5  17>e value of services or facilities
furnished by a govemrrtental unit to the
organization wiltiout charge'

6  Total. Add lines 1 through S

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3

received from disqualified persons

b Amounts ixluded on lines 2 and 3

received from other than dsquafified
persons thai exceed the greater of S5,000
or 1%of the amount on line 13 for the year

c Add lines 7a and 7b

8  Public support. (Subtract line 7c from

line 6.) •

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) i >■
9  Amounts from tine 6

10a Gross income from irtoresL dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources ...

b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

c Add lines 10a and 10b

11

12

13

14

(a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 (0) 2021 (0 Total

'

•

Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on Ine 10b. whether
or not tfie business Is regularly carried on .,
Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Pan VI,)
Total support (Add lirtes 9. 10c. 11,
and 12.)
First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, secorxJ. third, fourth, or fifth lax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop horo >n

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15

16

Public support percentage for 2021 (line 8, colunn (0. divided by Ine 13. column (f))
Public support percentage from 2020 Schedule A. Part ill, line 15

15

16

%

%

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17

18
17 Investment income percentage for 2021 (line 10c. cxXumn (f). divided by line 13. column (f))
18 Investment income percentage from 2020 Schedule A. Part ill, line 17
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2021. If the organization did not check the box on line 14. and line 15 is more lhan 33 1/3%, and line

17 is not more than 33 1/3%. check this box and stop hero. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
b 33 1/3% support tests—2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%. and

line 18 is not rrxjre than 33 1/3%. check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizalion....
20 Private foundation, if the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a. or I9b. check this box and see insLruclions

%

%

Schedule A (Form 990) 2021
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Scftedule A (Forrn &90) 2021 Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Se 02-0517861 Paoe 4

Part IV Supporting Organizations
. (Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked box 12a. Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b. Part I. complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part I, complete
Sections A. D. and E. If vou checked box 12d, Part I. complete Sections A and D. and complete Part V.) .

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1  Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? If 'No.' describe In Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by

class or purpose, deiscribe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

2  Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Ves," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization kvas described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). '

3a Did the orgariization have a supported organization described In section 501(c)(4). (5). or (6)? If "Yes," answer
tines 3b and 3c below.

b  Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4). (5). or (6) ana

satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If 'Yes.' describe in Pan VI when and how the
organization made the determination.

c  Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)

purposes? if "Yes." explain in Pan VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States f'foreign supported organization'1? If
"Yes,' and if you checked box 12a or I2b in Part I. answer lines 4b and 4c below.

b  Did the organization have ultimate control arxJ discretion In deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with Its supported organizations,

c  Did the organization support any foreign supported organization thai does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes,'explain in Part VJwhat controls the organization used

to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes.

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If 'Yes."
answer lines 50 and 5c beknv (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and BIN

numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed: {i) the reasons for each such action;

(Hi) the authority under the organizatioris organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

b  Typo I or Typo II only. VVas any added or substituted supported organization part of a dass already

designated in the organization's organizing document?

c  Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond Ihe organization's control?
6  Did the organization provide support (vrhether In the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to

anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited

by one or more of Its supported organizations, or (iii) other supponing organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

7  Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in s^on 4958(c)(3)(C)). a famSy member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990).

8  DkJ the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line
7? If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990).

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more

disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations

described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If 'Yes,'provide detail in Part VI.

b  Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling Interest in any entity in which
the supporting organlzafion had an Interest? If "Yes.' provide detail in Part VI.

c  Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in. or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in vrhich the supporting organization also had an interest? If 'Yes.' provide detail in Part VI.

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? ff "Yes,* answer f/ne f(?b fietow.

b  Did the organization have any excess business holdings In the tax year? (Use Schedule C. Form 4720. to
determine whether the organization had excess business hofdinds.)

Yes No

1

2

3a

3b

3c

4a

4b

4c

5a

-5b

5c

6

7

8

9a

9b

9c

10a

10b

Schedule A (Form 990) 2021
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Part IV Supporting Organizations {contiriuQd)
-Yes No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who direcdy or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines lib and

11c below, the governing body of a si4>ported organization?

b A family member of a person described on line 11a above?

c A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or lib above? ff "Yes" fo f/ne 11a, l1b,oriic.
nmvkle riptail in Part VI.

11a

lib

11c

S<^.tion B. Tvoe 1 Suobortiha Organizations

Yos No

1  Did the goveming body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect al least a majority of the organization's officers,
directors, or trustees al all times during the tax year? If 'No." describe in Part VI how the supported organizatbnfs)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organizatbn had more than one supported
organizatbn, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any. applied to such powers during the tax year.

2  Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
•  ofganization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If "Yes," explain in Part

VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
.tiinervLsftd or controlled the suooortlna oraanlzation.

1

2

Section C. Tvoe II SuDDortInq Ordanizations

Yes No

1  Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organizationfs)? If 'No,' describe in Part VIhow control
or management of the supporting organ/raWon was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
fhe xiinnortad nmanizat'ionfsi. 1

Section D. AM Type III Supporting Organizations

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year. 0) a written notice desaibing the type and amount of support provided during the prior lax
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization's goveming docurhenls in effect on the dale of notification, to the extent not previously provided?
V\fere any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the goveming body of a supported organization? If 'No.' explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close arxf continuous working relationship with the supported orgenization(s}.
By reason of the relationship described on line 2. at>ove. did the organization's supported organizations have
a significant voice in the organization's Investment policies aixJ in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all limes during the tax year? If "Yes,' describe in Part VI the role the organization's
supported organizations played in this regard.

Yos No

Section E. Type III Functionally Ifttegrated Supporting Organizations

Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see Instructions).
The organization.satisfied the Acth/itles Test, Complete line 2below.

The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 bebw.
Tfie organizaUon supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions,.

Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below.

Did substantialty all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organizatlon{s) to which the organization was responsive? If "yes.'then in Part VI Identify
those supported' organizations and explain how these actMties directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organizatbn determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's

involvement, one or more of the organizaUon's supported organization{s) would have been engaged in? if
"Yes." explain in Part VI the reasons for the organization's posHbn that Hs supported organization(s) would

have engaged in these activities but for the organization's involvement.

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint .or elect a majority of tf>e officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? If 'Yes' or 'No." provide details in Part VI.
Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported oroartizations? If "Yes.' describe in Part VI the role played by the ofoanizaliori in this regard.'

2a

2b

3a

3b

-Yes No

Schedule A {Form 990) 2021
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Part V Type III Non-Functionallv Integrated 509(aH3) Supoortinq Organizations
1  I Ichcck here if the organization satisfied Ihe Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part Vfj. Seo

Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year
(B) Current Year

(optional)

1  Net short-term caoitai aaln 1

2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2

3 Other qross Income (see insiruclions) 3

4 Add lines 1 (hrouoh 3. 4

S Ocoreciation and depletion 5

6  Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred foe production or collection

of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of
prooertv held for production of Income (see instructions) 6

7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7

6 Adiustod Not tncomo (subtract lir>es 5. 6. and 7 (rom line 4) 8

Section B - lutlnimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year
(B) Current Year

(optional)

1  Aggregate (air market value o( all non-exempt-use assets (see

instructions for short tax year or assets held lor part of year):

a Avcraoe monthly value of securities 1a

b Averaqe monthly cash balances 1b

c' Fair market value of other rtorvexemol-use assets 1c

d Total (add lines la. lb. and to) Id

e Discount claimed for blockage or other factors

(explain in detail in Part VO:

2 Acoulsilion indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2

3  Subtract line 2 from line Id. 3

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,

see instructions). 4

S Nel value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line A (rom tine 3) 5

6  Bne 5 by 0.035. 6

7  Recoveries. Q( orlor-vear distributions 7

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 lo line 6) 8

Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year

1  Adjusted net income (or prior year (from Section A. line 8. column A) ,  1

2  Enter 0.85 of line 1. 2

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B. line 8. column A) 3

4  Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4

5  Income tax imposed in prior year S
-

6  Distributable Amount Subtract Bne 5 from line 4. unless subject to

emeraericv temborary reduction (see instructions). 6

(see instruOions).
Schadule A (Form 990) 2021
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02-0517861 Federal Asset Report
FYE: 6/30/2022 Form 990, Page 1

Date Bus Sec Basis
Asset DescriDtion In Service Cost % 179 Bonus for Depr PerConv Meth Prior Current

Prior MACR.S:

1 Oflicc rumuiire 4/19/00 1,028 1,028 7 HY 200DD 1,028 0
2 Rcmoic Flasher 9/07/01 680 680 7 IIY 200DB 680 0
12 ProSO 'ITY with LVD 6A30/02 584 X 409 5 UY 200DB 584 0
14 Power Backup APO 3/26/02 395 X 276 5 HY200DD 395 0
21 Dell Computer 2/26/05 1.237 1.237 5 HY S/I. 1,237 0
22 Computer 4/30/05 1,217 1,217 5 HY .S/L 1,217 0
25 Dell Computer 4/24/07 1.671 1,67! 5 HV S/1, 1,67! 0
26 Dell Computer 6/30/07 688 688 5 HY S/L 688 0
27 Server mom 1,460 1,460 5 HY S/L 1,460 0
29 l!)cll Computer 7/07/07 528 528 5 HV S/L 528 0
30 Referral Headsets 7/28/07 1,052 1,052 5 HY S/L 1,052 • 0
31 3 Computers 10/10/07 1,057 1,057 5 HY S/L 1.057 0
32 Server iipgmdc-48 ports 10/27/07 778 778 5 HY S/l. 778 0
33 Dell Computer-Carol 12/28/07 858 858 5 HY S/L 858 0
34 9 Caiio Cubicles 7/01/07 560 560 7 HY S/L 560 0
35 Table & Chairs 12/13/07 1,865 1,865 7 MY S/L 1,865 0
36 Table & Chairs Boardroom 4/27/08 1,986 X 993 7 HY S/L 1.986 0
41 Server 10/29/10 1,459 X 0 5 HY S/L 1,459 0
42 Compurter I/08/II 654 X 0 5 HY S/L 654 0
43 Computer 4/21/1 1 598 X 0 5 HY S/f. 598 0
46 Laptop & Projector 9/30/12 1.74! X 87! 5 HY S/L 1,741 0.
48 Rererral SoRwarc 4/22/14 16,698 X 8.349 5 HY S/L 16.698 0
50 ITimturc 5/28/15 778 X 389 7 HY S/L 667 56
52 l3esktop • Opr Mgr 10/22/15 604 X 302 5 HY S/L 483 0
55 leasehold (mprovcmeiits 4/06/17 3,455 X 1.727 5 HY S/L 2,764 0
57 Unity Database Uptiatcs 6/05/17 2,310 X 1.155 5 HY S/L 1,848 231
61 SonicWall TZ300 Firewall 8/01/18 3,058 X 1,529 5 HY S/l. 1,529 .306
62 PowerCdgc TI30 Sen-er 12/01/18 1,700 X 850 5 HY S/l. 850 •  170
63 Perpetual Non^ProHl Software 1/28/19 1,620 X 810 5 HY S/L 810 162
64 PowcrEdgo ri30 Scrx'cr 12/01/18 1,700 X 850 5 HY S/l. 850 170
65 SonicWall TZ300 Firewall 8/17/18 3,058 X 1,529 5 HY S/L 1,529 306
67 2 3070-8013 Compiiicrs 10/31/19 2,090 X 1,463 5 HY S/L 627 293
68 PovvcrCdge TI30 Scivcr 12/19/19 2,355 X 1,648 5 HY S/l. 707 329
69 4 3070-8GB Computers 2/26/20 4,415 X 3,090 5 HY S/L 1,325 618
70 fcqxtiiia! Non-Profti Software 12/06/19 600 X 420 5 [IY .S/L 180 84
73 Deli Computer 2021 12/31/20 5,248 X 4,723 5 HY S/L 525 944
74 Laptops 1 1/09/20 92! X 829 5 HY S/L 92 166

72,706 46.891 53,580 3,835

Olhrr Drnrrfinlion;

20 Chairs 4/30/05 859 859 7 M0200DB 859 0
38 Database Software 12/02/08 13.500 13.500 5 MO S/L 9,500 0

Total Other Depreciation 14.359 14.359 10.359 0

Total ACKS and Other Depreciation 14.359 14,359 10.359 0

Grand Totals 87,065 61,250 63.939 3,835
Less: Dispositions and Transfers 0 0 0 0
Less: Slart-up/Org Kxpcnse 0 0 0 0

Net Grand Totals 87,065 61.250 63.939 3.835
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McLARNEY
Certified Public Accountants

www.mclarneyco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

l"o llic Hoard of Direclors

of I'foriheast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services

C)pinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements
of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services as of June 30,2022 and 2021, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Northeast Deaf and Hard of
Hearing Services and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be Issued.

Auditor's RespoDsibilities for the Audit of the FiDanclai Statemeots

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher-than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

6 Courthouse Lane, ■' OneTremontSt.
Chelmsford,MA01824 Concord, NH 03301

Phone:(978)453-2222 Phone:(603)224-4990
Fax:(978)453-2882 McLar.ney & Company; LLC Fax:(603)226-0030

Helping our clients keep more of what they earn.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit,

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Northeast
Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our Judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the
audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 13, 2022, on our
consideration of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services'
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services s internal control Over
financial reporting and compliance.

McLamey & Company LLC

McLarney & Company, LLC
Cbelmsford, MA
October 13,2022



Noi-tlicnst Dcnf nnd Hui'd of Hciii-ingSct-vtccs
Stntcmcnts of Finiiiiciiil Position

Foi' the ¥07113 Ended Jimc 30, 2022 nnd 2021

ASSETS

June 30. 2022 June 30, 2021

Witliout Donor With Donoi- 2022 Without Donor Will) Donor 2020

Current Assets. Restrictions Rcstricliuns Total Rcstrictions Rcstiiciions Total

Cash (Note 2, 5) S 329.500 $ s 329,500 S 404.279 S S 404,279

Accoiims Receivable (Note 2) 166,601 166,601 94.597 94,597

Grants Receivable - Current (Note 3.5) 72,681 72.681 28,206 28,-206

Prepaid Expenses 7.995 7.995 3,439 3,439

Total Current Assets 576.777 .  576,777 530,521 530,521

Fixed Assets (N"'® 1)
Furniture and Fixtures 7.756 - 7.756 7.756 - 7,756

OfTtce Equipment, Computers 54,626 • 54.626 54,626 • 54,626

Soflwarc 21.228 - 21,228 21,228 • 21,228

I.casehold Improvements 3,455 - 3,455 3,455 - 3,455

Accumulated Depreciation (69,547) - (69.547) (63.908) • (63.908)

Total Fixed Assets. Net 17.519 . 17.519 23.158 23,158

Other Assets

Deposits 3,000 • -  . 3.000 3.000 3,000

Total Other Assets 3,000 - 3,000 3.000 - 3,000

TOTAL ASSETS s 597.296 $ s 597.296 s 556,678 s S 556.678

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current I.inbililics

Accounts Payable s 21,109 S $ 21,109 s 6,139 s $  6,139

Current Portion PPP Loan (Note 8) - • - 21,258 2U58

Deferred Revenue 47,000 47,000 46.500 • 46300

Accrued Expenses 27.997 - 27.997 11.296 - IU96

Total Current Liabilities 96.106 96,106 85.193 . 85,193

Long Tcnn Debt (Note 8) 139354 139,354

Total Liabilities 96.106 96,106 224.547 - 224.547

Net Assets

Net Assets (Note 2, 5) 501,187 - 501,187 332.131 - 332,131

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS s 597,296 $ s 597,296 s 556.678 s $ 556.678

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
Page 3



Norlhcnst DcnT and Hard of Hearing Services

Stnlcincnts of Aclinlics

For (lie Ycni-s Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

June 30,2022 June 30, 2021

Witliuut Donor

RestrlcHom

With Doiior

Restrictions

2022

Total

Without Donor WKIi Donor

Resd-lclions Restrictions

2021

Total

Revenue and Snnnort fNole 2. 9)

Foundation Grouts

Ooveniinent Grants

Contributions

Program Revenue
Referrol Fees

PPP extinguislinieiit of Debt

S

280,379

25,292

620,454

72,327

i 60,612

84

S $

280,379

25,292

620.454

72.327

160,612

84

S  - S •

170,235

14,364

417,914

56.360

215

$

170,235

14,364

417,914

56,360

215

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT 1,159,148
-

1.159.148 659.088 659,088

Ftmciional Extwnscs

Pmomm Services

SiiDOortina Services

General /t Administrative

Fund Raising

831.097

158,995 -

831,097

158,995

595.678

ia635

595.678

112,635

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 990,092 990,092 708JI3 708.313

CHANG E IN NET ASSETS (Note 9) 169.056 -• 169,056 (49.225) (49,225)

Not Assets - Dcginning of Year 332.131 . h2.l31 381.356 381.356

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S  501.187 S S  501,187 S  332,131 S S  332,131

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
Paged



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Statements of Cash Flows

June 30, 2021 and 2020

2022 2021

Cash Flows From Opei ating Activities

Change in Net Assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
NON Cash Charges (Credits) to Change In Net Assets

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Increase In PPP Loan

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures

Interest Paid

Income Taxes Paud

Non Cash PPP Interest Accrual

$  169,056 $ (49.225)

Depreciation & Amortization 5,945 5,945

Gain on extinguishment of debt (160,612) -

Allowance for bad debts 43,627 13,851

Changes in Working Capital

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (115,935) (33,003)

(Increase) decrease in grants receivable (44,475) (8.672)

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (4,555) 1,266

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 14,969 15,890

Increase (decrease) in other accrued liabilities 16,701 13,779

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 500 500

Total adjustments (243,835) (49.783)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $  (74,779) $ . (99,008)

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report

Page 5

75,580

75.580

(6>159)

(6.159)

$  (74,779) $ (29,587)

$  404,279 $ 433,866

$  329,500 $ 404.279

1,178



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services

Statements of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30,2022 &2021

Program Generol & Fund
Services Administrati\'e Raising

2022

Total

Expenses

Program

Scr^^ccs

OenernI &

Admiiiistrati^'e

Fund

Raising-

2021

Total

Expertses
Advertising & Media Outreach S  1,839 $  • 1,401 S S  3340 Advertising & Media Oulrcauh S S  899 S  899

Contributions • - . Contributions . 500 500

Program Expenses 10,657 - 10,657 Program Expenses 24364 2.103 26367
Interpreters Fees - - - Interpreters Fees 39,412 2,700 42,111

Printing & Publications - - - Printing & Publications - 55 55-

Travd 29.703 342 30,045 Travel 10.474 236 10.710

Personnel Expenses 427,729 62383 490,112 Personnel Expenses 303,074 52,161 355335

Payroll Taxes 32,114 4367 36.481 Payrdi Taxes 23,458 4,038 27,496

Fund Raising Expenses - - - Fund Raising Expaises - -

Consulting 203,397 7389 210,786 Consulting 95372 643 96.015

Dues. Subscripliais, Licenses -

.

- Dues, Subscriptions, Licenses - 412 412

Repairs & Maintenance • • - Repairs & Maintenance - -

Insurance 54.584 11368 65,953 Insurance 37,828 7.274 45,101

Email & Website . - - Email & Wdtsite 2.552 521 3.073

Referral Fees Expense - - Referral Fees Expense • 150 - 150

Staff Development, Training 950 100 1,050 StatT Development, Training 130 - - 130

Supplies 5.368 2.727 8.095 Supplies -  2.403 684 3.087

Telephone, Pagers 9,508 • 9,508 Telephone, Pagers 8.925 329 9353

Allowance for Bad Debts - 43.627 43^627 Allowance for Bad Debts 13.851 13.851

Miscellaneous 1,776 888 2,664 Miscetlonecus 3368 5.915 9.183

Interest/Finance Charges . . • Interest/Finance Charges - 1,178 1,178

Accounting & Legal Services 8,372 13,408 21,780 Accounting & Legal Ser\'ices 301 n.946 12347

Rcnt& Utilities 42,604 5.119 47.722 Rent A Utilities 41.446 2300 43.746

Oftice Expense 2,495 236 2,731 Office Expatse 2,771 196 2,968

Depreciation and Amnrtiy.atian • 5,640 5,640 Depreciation and Amortization • 5.944 5,945

TOTAL EXPENSES S  831,097 $  158,995 S S 990,091 TOTAL EXPENSES S 595,678 S  112.635 S  - ,S 708.313

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
Page 6



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES. INC.
Notes to the FinnncinI Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE I - NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (the "Organization") is a non-profit
organization dedicated to serving deaf and hard of hearing individuals in a culturally sensitive
environment that is communicationally unrestricted and "natural", and which promotes
independence and productivity. It is the mission of the organization to empower, educate and
advocate for equal access and opportunity for deaf and hard of hearing citizens of New
Hampshire.

NOTE 2 - SUMIVURY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor
or grantor- imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and
reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and
not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The governing board has designated, from
net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve and board-designated
endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed
restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be
met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates those resources be maintained in
perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted .
has been fulfilled, or both.

Revenue & Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost reimbursable
contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in which the related services
are performed or expenditures are incurred, respectively. Contributions are recognized when
cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial
interest is received. Conditional promises to give arc not recognized until the conditions on
which they depend have been substantially met.

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions.
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the contribution is
recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restriction. When a restriction expires (that is,
when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassifled to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of
activities as net assets released from restrictions. Contributed propert)' and equipment arc recorded at fair
value at tlie date of donation. Contributions with donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the
contributed assets must be used arc recorded as net assets with donor restrictions; othcnvise, the
contributions are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions.



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Donated Services and hi-Kind Contributions:

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to our progi'am services, administration, and
fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the
value of these conti'ibuted services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by
generally accepted accounting principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. The Organization records donated professional services at the respective fair
values of the services received

Cash and Cash Eouivalerits

The organization considers all cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less, which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-
term purposes, to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accoimts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from balances
outstanding at year-end. Based on management's.assessment of tlie credit history witit the
agencies having outstanding balances and current relationships with them, it has concluded
that realization losses on balances outstanding at year-end will be approximately $ 55,373 and
$13,851 for the years ended Jime 30,2022 and 2021 respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted acco.unting
principles requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and
those differences could be material.

The impact of the pandemic may result in a reasonably possibility that estimates will change by a
material amount in the near term, however, we are unable to assess these changes, if any, at this
point in lime.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs approximated $3,240 and $0
during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Property and EQuioment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or, if donated, at the fair value at the date of
donation. Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. follows the policy of capitalizing
expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500. Major renewals and improvements
are capitalized, while replacements, maintenance and repairs, which do not materially extend the
useful lives of the assets, are expensed. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the following estimated useful lives;

Office Equipment and Furniture 5-7 years
Development of Software 5 years
Leasehold Improvements 5 years



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES. INC.
Notes to the FinnncinI Stnteinents

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 2 - SUMIVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Depreciation amounts expensed and reflected in the statements of activities for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $ 5,944 and $5,944, respectively. We review the carrying
values of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows
expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an
impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset.
There were no indicators of asset impairment during the year ended June 30, 2022.

Income Taxes

The organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and has been recognized by the IRS as
exempt from federal income taxes under IRC Section 501(c)(3). Thus it qualifies for the
charitable contribution deduction under IRC Sections ]70(b)(l)(A)(vi). The organization is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the
IRS. In addition, the entities are subject to income tax on net income that is derived from
business activities that are unrelated to their exempt purposes. Management has determined that
the organization is not subject to unrelated business income tax and has not filed an Exempt
Organization Business Income Tax Return (form 990-T) with the IRS.

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have, been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Shipping & Handling

All amounts billed to a customer in a sales transaction related to shipping and handling represent
revenues earned are reported as revenue/ Costs incurred by the Organization for shipping and
handling, including costs paid to third parties are reported as an expense.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying
financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The reclassifications had
no impact on previously reported net assets.

Pay Check Protection (TPPl Loan

A nongovernmental entity may account for a Paycheck Protection (PPP) loan as a financial
liability in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 470, Debt. Under this model, the entity records the
cash inflow from the PPP loan as debt and accrues interest at the below market rate. The amount

remains a liability until either the loan is partly or wholly forgiven and the debtor has been
released or the debtor pays off the loan. If some or all of the loan is forgiven the liability would
be reduced and a gain on extinguishment is recognized.



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.

Notes to the FinnncinI Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 3 - GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Grants receivables represent grants for which the donor organization has unconditionally
conunitted to providing funding in tlie future. Grants receivables are recognized as inconie on
the statement of activities at the time the commitment is made by the donor organization. Grant
commitments which will not be received within the next twelve months are reflected as other

assets on the statement of financial position. The method of accounting for grants receivable has
the effect of creating fluctuations between positive and negative changes in net assets from year
to year as reflected on the statement of activities. Grants for which the donor organization places
contingencies are recognized as support when the funds are actually received or when the
contingency has been satisfied. All grants are expected to be received; therefore, no allowance
for doubtful accounts has been established.

NOTE 4-ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

The balance of Accounts receivable on June 30, 2022 and 2021 are comprised of the following.
2022 2021

Accounts Receivable $221,974 $108,448
Less; Allowance for Doubtful

Accounts (55,373) (13,851)

Net Accounts Receivable 166,601 94,597

NOTE 5- CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains an operating account at one bank. Operating accounts at an.
institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. The
Organization exceeded the federally insured limits throughout tlie fiscal year. Cash at this
institution exceeded Federally insured limits at June 30,2022 and 2021 by $78,895 and
$154,279, respectively.

The Organization receives all its revenue from New Hampshire sources. 58% of the Accounts
receivable balance is concentrated in the five largest customers.

Certain types of concentrations may be more relevant to the financial statement due to the
impacts of the pandemic. For example, these may include concentrations in labor, financial
assets, sources of supply, or customers that have been or will be impacted by the pandemic. We
are unable to assess these potential impacts at this time.

NOTE 6- COMMITMENTS

The Organization entered into a lease for office space in Concord, New Hampshire in 2017 for
five years until March 2022 for $3,000 per month until April 2020 when the rent will be $3,150
per month. This lease was renewed in April of 2022 for an additional five-year period ending on
March 31, 2027. The monthly rent under this lease renewal is as follows: $3,150 for the first two
years then $3,350 per month for the next three-year period. Rent expense for the facility for the
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $37,800 and $36,450 respectively.

10



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.

Notes to thc.Finnncifll Stntements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 6- COMTVriTlVrENTS CONTINUED

The Organization also has the following operating leases for otTice equipment; a copier lease
having monthly payments of $136.50 which began on June 1, 2017 and matures on May
31,2022. Upon maturity the Organization entered Into a five-year lease beginning on May 5,

2022 and ending on April 5, 2027 for $167. Per month, a telephone system lease having monthly
payments of $205 beginning on April 18, 2017 and ending on March 16, 2022 and finally a
stamp machine lease with monthly payments of $45 beginning on May 15, 2020 and ending in
August of 2026.

Future minimum lease payments required for the year ended:
6/30/2023 $40,344

6/30/2024 40,944

6/30/2025 42,744

6/30/2026 42,294

6/30/2027 31,987

Thereafter 0

NOTE 7- FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that
is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include occupancy, depreciation, and
amortization, which are allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries and wages,
benefits, payroll taxes, professional services, office expenses, information technology, interest,
insurance, and other, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort.

N0TE8-PPPDEBT

On April 22, 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of approximately
$85,032 and on April 1, 2021 received $74,402 for a total of $159,434 under the Pay-check
Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security Act ("CARES Act"), provides for loans to qualifying businesses for amounts
up to 2.5 times of the average monthly payroll expenses of llie qualifying business. The loans
and accrued interest are forgivable after eight weeks as long as the borrower uses the loan
proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains its
payroll levels. The amount of loan forgiveness will be reduced if the borrower terminates
employees or reduces salaries during the twenty-four-week period.

The unforgiven portion of the PPP loan is payable over two years and five years respectively at
an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first six months, which was accrued for
the first loan in the amount of $1,178. The Organization intends to use the proceeds for purposes
consistent with the PPP. The Organization currently believes that its use of the loan proceeds will
meet the conditions for forgiveness of the loan. During the year ended June 30, 2022 the
Organization received forgiveness of both loans from the SBA.

11



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 8 - PPF DEBT Continued

2022 2021

Small Business Administration Loans $ - $160,612

Less Current Portion ofLoans ^ -21258
Long Term Notes Payable $ - $ 139,354

Principle Maturities ofLongTerm Debt were as follows on June 30, 2022

6/30/2022

6/30/2023

6/30/2034

6/30/2025

6/30/2025

Thereafter

NOTE 9- LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABCLITY

Financial assets'available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

2022 2021

Cash

Accounts Receivable

$329,500 $404,27

Grants Receivable

Financial Assets available to meet cash need for

general expenditure within one year

9

166,601 94,597

72,681 28,206

$568,782 $527,081

12



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Finnncin! Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE 9- UOUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY CONTINUED

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. is substantially supported by restricted
contractual or grant payments which are all expected to expire within a twelve- month period.
Because a contact's or grant's restriction s requires resources to be used in a particular manner or in a
future period Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. must maintain sufficient resources
to meet those responsibilities. As part of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.
liquidity management, it has a pK>licy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. As part of our liquidity management plan,
we invest cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments, CDs, and money market
funds.

NOTE 10- SUBSEOUENTTVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through October 13, 2022, which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued for events requiring recording or disclosure
in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 and none were found.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCl.'U. REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOK£RM/£/Vr>l UDJTING STANDARDS

To Uie Board of Truslees of

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services

We have audited, in accordance witli the auditing standards generally accepted in tlie United Stales of America and die standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Governmeni Audiiing Standards issued by iJie Comptroller General of lite United Slates, Uic
financial statements of Nonlieast Deaf and Hard of Hearing SeiA'ices (a nonprofit organization), wluch comprise lire statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2022 and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for tlic year iJicn ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report tltereon dated October 13, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Finnncial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of Uie financial statements, we considered Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures tliat are appropriate in the circumstances for
tlte purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for iltc purpose of expressing an opinion on tlte effectiveness
of Nortlteast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Ser\'ices internal control. Accordingly, wc do not express an opiition on Uie effectiveness of
Nortlieast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' iniemai control.

A deficiency in internal control exists wlten Uic design or operation of a control docs not allow management or employees, in ilic nomial
course of pcrfomiing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, missialements, on a timely basis. A material weakness
is a deficienc)', or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such dial tliere is a reasonable possibility llial a material missiatemenl

• of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and coireclcd, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control tliat is less severe than a niatcri^ weakness, yet important enough to
merit allcnlion by Uiose cliarged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was forllie limited purpose described in tlie first paragraph of tills section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given Uiese limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control tliat we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist tliai ̂ ^'eFe not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Nortlieast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Scr>'iccs financial statements are free from
material misstntement, we perfonned tests of its compliance witli certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance willi wliich could liave a direct and material effect on tlie financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance witli those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Tlie results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance oroilxir mailers that are required lobe reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of Uiis report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of tliat,testing,
and not to provide an opinion on tlie effectiveness of the organization's internal control or on compliance. Tliis report is an integral part
of an audit perfonned in accordance witli Governmeni Auditing Standards in considering tlie organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this cominunicaLion is not suitable for any oUier purpose.

LLO

McLamcy & Company LLC
Chelmsfcrd, MA 01824
October 13, 2022
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Board of Directors List

The governing board of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing consists of Community Members, of
which at least fifty-one percent must be Deaf or Hard of Hearing. The primary duties of the board are
to supervise the Executive Director, develop policies for the agency, oversee the agency's finances
and to raise funds. Between meetings, members are expected to be on committees and to actively
raise funds. The average commitment for our board members is about four hours per month.

Chairman of the Board Michael Ritter

Executive Committee

Term Ends: October 2024
Vice Chairman Norman Lafond Sr.

Executive Committee

Term Ends: October 2024

Treasurer Larry Farrell
Executive Committee

Term Ends: January 2024
Secretary Peter Simoneau

Executive Committee

Term Ends: January 2024
Board Member Vincent Youmatz

Executive Committee / Legal Council

Term Ends: October 2024

Board Member Lori McLaren

Term Ends: January 2024
Board Member Deborah Bailey

Term Ends; January 2024
Board Member Tina Cook

Term Ends: October 2022

Board Member Gerry Monroe

Term Ends: July 2022
Board member Rickey Persons

Term Ends: January 2025
Board member Susan Wolf-Downes

Term Ends: October 2024
Board member Open



Michelle McConaghy Executive Director 0.08 5  6,737.52

Don Borror Bookkeeper 0.20 S  9,438.00

Polly Lorien Communcation Access and Referral Coordinator 0.15 S  5,528.25

Sydney Aube Communcation Access and Referral Coorinator 0.20 S  7,371.00

KJ Johnston Communication Access and Rcfcrria Coordinator .  0.15 S  5,528.25

MadelynSaab Communication Access and Referral Coordinator 0.15 5  5,528.25

5  40,131.27 0.12 $. 44,947.02



Michelle McConaghy

Experience

Summary:

Experienced Professional with over twenty years assisting individuals with disabilities achieve

independence through identifying measurable steps that provide a solid foundation for successful
outcomes. Well versed In major legislation including the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), Americans
with Disabilities Act Amendments Act (ADAA), Rehabilitation Act, and the Workforce Innovation and

Opportunity Act (WlOA). A passionate advocate and evangelist for the disability community that leads by
example via a resolute optimism towards life and individual potential.

Experience:

Executive Director

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
October 2020- Present

Concord, NH. 03301

www.ndhhs.org

Develop and direct organizational strategy and services, in conjunction with the board of directors
Attend various informational/outreach meetings for purposes of disseminating information about
NDHHS.

Engage ongoing communication with various service providers, agencies, businesses,
organizations, civic groups and other interested parties.
Prepare comprehensive budgets.
Reporting on revenue and expenditures
Oversee and direct general fundraising activities and grant application and funding Write grants
and seek other funding sources.
Recruit and supervise NDHHS staff and contractors
Overseeing day-to-day business activities.
Assess the need and scope of services to be provided.

Vocational Rehabilitation Counselor Lead

Washington State Division of Vocational Rehabilitation
April 1999 - September 2020
Seattle, Washington, United States
httDs://www.dshs.wa.QOv/dvr

•  Provide vocational counseling to assist customers in gaining an understanding of their disabilities,
potential impediments to employment, and related issues that must be considered in selecting an
employment goal including carrying out a successful Individualized Plan for Employment
(IPE). Manage an average caseload of one hundred and ten customers living with a variety of
disabilities in order to achieve successful employment outcomes.

•  Determine client eligibility for a federally funded vocational program by evaluating and analyzing
necessary medical, psychological, social, educational, vocational, and financial information to
use for vocational planning.

•  Conduct intakes and determine customer's needs to provide or arrange vocational rehabilitation
services that include guidance and counseling, assessment, transition from high school to
employment required to achieve and maintain employment goals.

•  Oversee the delivery of Pre-Employment Transition Services for students with disabilities in order
to ensure ED plan adherence. Develop relationships with students, school districts, family
members, and government agencies in order to ensure successful career placement.

•  Manage expenditures within an allotment of case service funds in excess of $150,000, for the
diagnostic evaluation of the customer or required for the implementation of vocational
rehabilitation services identified on the IPE.



•  utilize electronic case management system to conduct all facets of documentation, including
current record of vocational rehabilitation services, noting functional limitations, key decisions and
activities while an active case.

•  Conduct community outreach initiatives through presentations and collaboration with partners and
multiple stakeholders.

• • Assigns and coaches staff within the office regarding best practices in the delivery of vocational
rehabilitation counseling practices, service delivery policies and procedures, case management,
and funding approval in the absence of office supervisor.

•  Assists in the development of agendas and office meetings along with external presentations to
partners and community stakeholders.

•  Participate in a committee to coordinate and plan the annual Deaf2Deaf BizTown event:
https://vimeoDro.corh/seaQomedia/ia-biztown

Director

Pathfinder Transition Network (PIN)
February 1997 - August 1998
Kintersville, Pennsylvania, United States

•  Co-founded and managed social service agency incorporating technology-based training for the
Deaf and Hard of Hearing individuals. Worked directly with Deaf and Hard of Hearing clients in
obtaining and maintaining employment.

• Worked in concert with clients to identify assistive technology and services that helped to remove
barriers to work, in addition educated employers in providing accommodations and accessibility
awareness.

•  Managed internal budget of $150,000 dollars and secured individual funding for customer needs
via external State, Local, and Federal channels.

•  Facilitated communication and job skills acquisition with consumers to ensure long term
employment success.

Program Specialist
Lehigh Valley Community Foundations Inc.
February 1996 - November 1996
Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, United States

httPs://www.lehiQhvallevfoundation.orG

•  Coordinated, facilitated and assisted with medical, behavior programs, appointments, and
activities for individuals with disabilities.

•  Consistently and accurately maintained client records in compliance with local, state, federal,
agency and contractual regulations or requirements

•  Assisted with the supervision and management of both client's individual and house financial
accounts.

•  Supervised and oversaw the staffing support in the homes, working to promote staff cohesion and
build staff morale.

•  Provided personnel supervision to assigned staff.
•  Maintained and sustained positive working relationships with participants' families and friends,

vocational program staff, day program staff, DDA Case/Resource Management and other service
providers.

Employment Specialist
Employment Technology Inc.
February 1990-April 1994
Doylestown, Pennsylvania, United States
htto://emDtech.ora



• Worked directly with an average of fifty individuals with disabilities in obtaining and maintaining
employment.

•  Interfaced with employers and educated them on the positive impact individuals experiencing
disabilities and barriers can have on the workplace.

•  Developed thorough knowledge of local, regional, and national labor trends, career openings and
search strategies, along with additional resources in order to assist clients in a successful career
search.

•  Maintained up-to-date case notes detailing the goals of clients and work-related activities.
•  Provided job training and supervision to clients at job sites including: performing task analysis,

breaking down tasks and teaching new ways to perform them.
•  Performed time studies, documented piece rate activity and monitored quality control.
• Worked alongside the disabled customers until they learned to function at an acceptable

performance rate.
•  Monitored client's behavioral objectives and provided behavioral interventions when necessary.

Education;

Bachelor of Social Work: Temple University
Master of Rehabilitation Counseling: University of Kentucky



DON BORROR

BOOKKEEPER, NOHHS, Present position. Enter and pay invoices using Quickbooks. Generate and send
invoices to customers. Coordinate biweekly payroll process. Receive payments and prepare bank
deposits. Reconcile bank accounts monthly.

NH MUTUAL BANCORP, GL Accts Reconciliation, 2017 to 2021. Balanced and cleared GL transactions

daily, performed month end recons and prepared reports for senior management. Approved invoices
for processing by finance staff.

TOWN OF GOFFSTOWN, Finance Director/Treasurer, 2011 to 2016. Assisted with budget development,
oversaw PR and A/P processes. Coordinated annual financial audits, supervised finance staff of four.
Prepared monthly expenditure and revenue reports. Invested town funds in accordance with NH state

statutes. Analyzed bank fees and relationships for town.

STATE OF NH, DRA, Municipal Accounts Auditor, then Asst. Division Director, 1993 to 2011. Set tax rates

for up to 60 NH municipalities, communicated with various town officials, taxpayers, CPA's and
attorneys on matters of public fiscal administration. Developed and presented training workshops.
Oversaw NH tax collector supervision initiative.

RELEVANT SKILLS AND ATTRIBUTES

Experience with Excel and Word, spreadsheets and documents

Experience posting transactions, approving invoices, and preparing reports
Reliable, with good work ethic

Enjoy working independently with minimal supervision

Excellent communication and math skills

EDUCATION

Southern NH University, Bachelor of Science, Business Administration

Mclntosh College, Associate in Science, Accounting



Sydney E. Aube

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services November/2021- Present
Communication Access and Referral Specialist

- Connecting Freelance Interpreters with hiring parties

- Advocacy work on behalf of the Deaf community

• Managing schedules and relationships with interpreters, community members, and hiring parties

Support Service Provider (SSP) Februory/2021- Preserit
Free Lance Assistant

- Assisting the Deaf-Blind in everyday tasks, including driving them to and from appointments, running
errands, and helping to navigate surroundings.
- Light American Sign Language interpreting when needed.

Buba Noodle Bar, Manchester, NH
Head Server and Bar Tender June/2020 - January/2021
-  Perform multiple tasks, including taking orders, making drinks, expediting and serving food,

packaging takeout orders, answering the phone and busing tables.
-  Interact with customers in a friendly manner to deliver exceptional service levels.

-  Developed and implemented organizational processes in stock rooms, dry room and for food
expedition.

-  Promoted to Head Server after 4 months. Additional responsibilities include ensuring all side work
is finished, prepping food for the next day, handling cash and checkout at the end of the night and
closing up the restaurant.

Puritan Restaurant, Manchester, NH
Takeout Manager June/2017 - June/2020
•Assisted customers by receiving their orders over the phone or in person, as well as packaging them
and cashing them out.

-Promoted to Manager after 5 months. Additional responsibilities included handling tip money,
managing break times, delegating side work for the end of the night and resolution of customer

disputes.

Harinaford, Manchester, NH

Front End Associate December/2014 - June / 2017
-Main responsibilities included cashier, bagging groceries and customer service.

EDUCATION

B.S., American Sign Language/English Interpreting

University of New Hampshire



Kiernan L Johnston

Northeast Deaf/HH Services 2023-Present
Referral Specialist

• Coordinate service providers for various interpreting and CART needs
• Organize and process Part B needs for events like weddings, funerals and other special

occasions

• Coordinate support services for a diverse client base, ensuring prompt and efficient
processes ■

• Onboard new SSP's and clients using personally-created elements to ensure quality
• Manage a team of SSP's, through assigning tasks, monitoring performance, and

-  providing guidance and training as needed

• Collaborate with other SSP programs to try to expand and improve current home
program

Walden School for the Deaf 7/2022-H/2022
Residential Child Care Worker

• Cared after kids of all ages

•  Ensured a special place for growth, development and recovery
• Helped managed crises as they happened, whether through deescalation or protection

99 Restaurant 2018-2022

Hostess/Expo/Server

•  Provided excellent customer service

• Helped accommodate the needs of individual guests and large groups
• Assisted coworkers to ensure smooth business operation
• Maintained a clean and sanitary work environment

•  Provided a warm and welcoming atmosphere for all guests
• Worked closely with all sides of the restaurant to keep up with business
• Operated quickly and efficiently under extremely fast paced and stressful environments
•  Communicated thoroughly with guests and coworkers to keep guests safe and happy

EDUCATION:

B.S., American Sign Language/English interpreting
University of New Hampshire at Manchester, 2018-2022


